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) g H —Leveraging the Company’ s Cybersecurity Risk
Management & Governance process, it has identified cybersecurity risk factors that are inherent to the Company’ s business and




industry. The risk factors discussed in this section should be considered together with information included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K and should not be considered the only risks to which the Company is exposed. Additionally,
mitigation of these risk factors is tracked by management as part of the Cybersecurity Maturity Roadmap. * Disruptions in the
Company’ s supply chain could result in an adverse impact on results of operations. * Network compromise or equipment
sabotage could impact the operations of the manufacturing or distribution sites which could impact the revenue. * Cybersecurity
incidents, including breaches of confidential information, sensitive data, personal information, or intellectual property could
damage the Company’ s reputation, disrupt operations, increase costs, and impact revenues. * Nation state attacks due to current
geopolitical and economic climate could impact oil and gas industry. Engagement of Third Parties The Company uses an IT
Managed Service Provider in conjunction with a Cybersecurity Advisory firm to perform various functions, guiding the
Company’ s cybersecurity posture, and providing ongoing support to the Company’ s cybersecurity program. The Company has
Incident Response retalner serv1ces that can be leveraged When needed. The Company uses a third—party-external-atditorto
perform-anntal-audits;-whteh-inelude-eyberseeurity-ee S;-and-a ybersecurltyadVlsory firm to conduct annual rlsk

ﬁﬂbea-rd-lﬂg—began—l—n%aﬂuafy%@% Board Over51ght of Cybersecurlty Matters The cybersecurlty dashboard Wlth roadmap

progress is shared with the board of directors regularly, which includes actions completed and any topics that need board
awareness / sponsorship such as approval of budgets which include cyber security project initiatives. An in- depth update
regarding cyber security is discussed during quarterly meetings with the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is ultimately
responsible for overseeing management’ s execution of the Company’ s cybersecurity risk management program. The Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and designees are responsible for reviewing and approving the Cybersecurity Risk Management
processes, or exceptions to such processes. External Counsel is consulted on legal matters related to Cybersecurity Risk or
Incident Management as deemed necessary by leadership. Additionally, the Cybersecurity Risk Committee holds periodic
Cybersecurity Governance Forums, in which detailed cybersecurity program updates and metrics are reported. The Company’ s
Chief Financial Officer and VP of Finance are responsible for the oversight and communication of cybersecurity threats and
risks to the Company’ s Board of Directors. They meet regularly with the Board of Directors where a Cybersecurity roadmap
progress is shared with the board. xxxiv Item 2. Properties. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , our one eperatiftg-ane-reporting
segment operated out of 16 facilities in 13 locations, 12 of which are located in the United States and one of which is located in
Canada . Internationally, we operated out of 3 facilities in 3 locations . Our properties are comprised of service centers and
manufacturing facilities, 100 % of which are leased. Please see the table below for additional information on our properties:
Location Type Own / Lease United States: Bakersfield, CA Service Center LeaseBroussard, LA Service Center, Manufacturing
Facility LeaseNew Iberia, LA Service Center LeaseShreveport, LA Service Center LeaseWilliston, ND Service Center
LeaseOklahoma City, OK Service Center LeaseCharleroi, PA Service Center LeaseHouston, TX Service Center, Manufacturing
Facility LeaseMidland, TX (1) Service Center LeaseOdessa, TX (1) Service Center, Manufacturing Facility LeaseCarlsbad, NM
Service Center LeaseCasper, WY Service Center LeaseVernal, UT Service Center LeaseCanada: Service Center LeaseNisku,
Canada Service Center LeaseMiddle East: Dubai, UAE Service Center LeaseUnited Kingdom: Aberdeen, Scotland
Service Center LeaseEurope: Amsterdam, The Netherlands Support Center Lecase (1) Consists of two facilities Item 3.
Legal Proceedings. Due to the nature of our business, we are, from time to time, involved in routine litigation or subject to
disputes or claims related to our business activities, including workers’ compensation claims and employment related disputes.
Although no assurance can be given with respect to the outcome of these or any other pending legal and administrative
proceedings and the effect such outcomes may have, in the opinion of our management, there is no xxxv pending litigation,
dispute or claim against us that, if decided adversely, will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows. See Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. Not applicable. xxxvi
PART II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities. Market Information The Common Stock is listed on Nasdaq under the symbol “ DTI ”. On December 29-31 , 2623
2024 , the closing price of the Common Stock was $ 3. 20-27 per share. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there were
approximately $6-42 holders of record of Common Stock. Such number does not include beneficial owners holding shares of the
Common Stock through nominees. Dividend Policy We have not paid any cash dividends on the Common Stock. We currently
intend to retain any future earnings and do not expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Our ability to pay dividends
on the Common Stock could be restricted by the terms of the Credit Facility Agreement or the terms of any agreement
governing other indebtedness we may incur. Any future determination to declare cash dividends will be made at the discretion
of the Board, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on a number of factors, including our financial condition, results of
operations, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, general business conditions and other factors that the Board may deem
relevant. The information relating to our equity compensation plans required by Item 5. “ Market for Registrant’ s Common
Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities ” is incorporated by reference to such
information as set forth in Item 12. *“ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters ” contained herein. Item 6. Selected Financial Data. [ Reserved | Item 7. Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Drilling Tools International Holdings, Inc. (“ DTIH ) entered into a
business combination agreement (the *“ Agreement ) with ROC Energy Acquisition Corp. (“ROC ) on February 13, 2023. The
transactions contemplated by the Agreement (the “ Merger ) were completed on June 20, 2023, and in conjunction therewith
ROC changed its name to Drilling Tools International Corporation (“ DTIC ” and, together with its subsidiaries, “ DTI ”, the



Company ”, “we 7, “us ” or “ our ”, unless the context otherwise requires). The following discussion and analysis of our
financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our audited annual financial statements and the
related notes included under Item 8 — Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on
Form 10- K (the “ Report ) as well as DTIH’ s audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the
prospectus / proxy statement / consent solicitation statement, dated May 12, 2023, and filed with the SEC. The discussion and
the analysis should also be read together with the information set forth in the section entitled “ Business. ” The following
discussion contains forward- looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward- looking statements as a result of
various factors, including those set forth under the sections titled ““ Risk Factors ” and “ Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements ™ or in other parts of this Report. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may
be expected for any period in the future. Overview We are a leading-©S€-global oilfield services company that designs ,
based—eﬂ—t-he—pefeeﬂtage-englneers, manufactures and provrdes a dlfferentlated rental— focused offermg of aetivetigs-to

whieh-we-sapply-tools for in = v v v sed-- use in onshore
and offshore horizontal and dnectlonal dr1lhng operatlons, e%eﬂ—&nd—n&tt&al—gas» as well as other cutting- edge solutions

across the well life cycle . We now operate from 16 leeatiens—trservice and support centers across North America and 4-11
international steekmg—pe—mts—m—serwce and support centers across the Europe and—t-he—l\/hddle East, Afrlca (" EMEA")
regions and Asia main sta SOV v
eeﬁdtt-teﬂmg—toe-}s—dﬂ-l-l—ptpe—hevl— W&te-drﬂ-l—ptpe—aﬂd-tubmg—Paclﬁc (" APAC") reglons XXxvii We—a}se—reﬁt—suffaee-eeﬂtro-}
v W 6 weHs—Our business
model pr1md11ly centels on revenue ;Dener"lted hom tool rentals dnd product sales We g ;Dener"lted revenue from tool rentals and
product sales of $ 154. 4 million and $ 152. 0 mittenand-$1429—-6-million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022- respectively, and had net income of § 3. 0 million and $ 14. 7 milltenand-$2+—-million for those same periods. We
historically incurred significant operating losses since inception. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, we had an
accumulated deficit of $ 3. 6 million and $ 6 . 3 miherand-$2+—"-million, respectively. We believe our future financial
performance will be driven by continued investment in oil and gas drilling following years of industry underinvestment. Market
Factors Demand for our services and products depends primarily upon the general level of activity in the oil and gas industry,
including the number of active drilling rigs, the number of wells drilled, the depth and working pressure of these wells, the
number of well completions, the level of well remediation activity, the volume of production and the corresponding capital
spending by oil and natural gas companies. Oil and gas activity is in turn heavily influenced by, among other factors, investor
sentiment, availability of capital and oil and gas prices locally and worldwide, which have historically been volatile. Our tool
rental revenues are primarily dependent on drilling activity and our ability to gain or maintain market share with a sustainable
pricing model. Our product sales revenues are primarily dependent on oil and gas companies paying for tools that are lost or
damaged in their drilling programs as well as the customers drithng-eentraetorsneed to replace aging or consumable products
and our ability to provide competitive pricing. With the addition of Deep Casing Tools, we now sell tools to the end users for
use in constructing their wells. All of These-these factors may be influenced by the oil and gas region in which our customers
are operate-operating . While these factors may lead to differing revenues, we have generally been able to forecast our product
needs and anticipated revenue levels based on historic trends in a given region and with a specific customer. Recent
Developments and Trends In the first half of 2626-2024 and-early2621-, the oil and gas market witnessed a dynamic
1nterplay of geopohtlcal tensmns, supply concerns, and global demand fer—ﬂuctuatlons Crude oil stgm—ﬁeaﬂt-}y—deel-med-as—a

atrel t ton-by b ver-prices remained VOldtlle t-hrettgh%@%%—l-n—&re—ﬁ-rst—h&l—f—e%%@%%
West—Te*as—I-ntermedtate—(—wnh benchmarks such as Brent and WTI>)-experiencing fluctuations driven by a multitude of

factors. Geopolitical tensions in key oil - producing regions, such as the Middle East, continued to influence market

sentiment, leading to sporadic spikes in prices . Additionally and-velatilitythereofinereased-dramatiealty-, 1

concerns over supply disruptions, particularly amidst conﬂlcts and geopohtlcal uncertalntles, added to R—ussra—the market
" s unease irvastonrof-Ukratne-. As the global market for Russ 0 0

himitits-ability to-expoertcrude oil has continued its recovery, technlcal recessions, speclfically in Chlna, have slowed

progress and created fluctuations in global demand. As of December 31, 2024, other—- the petroletmproduets—The

aﬁﬁetpa-ted—m‘rpaet—eﬂ—supp-}y—d-reve—WTl oil pﬂees- prlce abeve—was approx1mately $ -1—2-3—72 44 per barrel tn—e&rlry—Mareh

%G%ﬁéeeﬂtmued-ﬂ&retrgh—&re—ertd—e-ﬁﬂ&e—ye&r— Desplte the ﬂ‘l—tS—h-tgh—VOldtlllty in spot oil prices descrlbed above our

customers tend to feeus-be more focused on medium- term and long —term commodity prices when making investment
decisions due to the longer lead times effor onshore and offshore projects. These forward prices experienced far less volatility
in 2022 and the-eatlypart-of-2023 and they-have maintained remained-at-lcvels thatin 2024 which are highly faverable
constructive for onshore and offshore project demand. Prices for natural gas hawe-decreased somewhat throughout the first
half of 2024 relative to the fourth quarter of 2023 relative-to-2622-in the Ynited-States-U. S. due to several factors, including
a mild winter in key consuming regions and increased production and availability, both of which led to an inerease
oversupply in the market. Additionally, constrained storage capacity and delivery delays resulted in uncertainty around



liquified natural gas preduettenr-exports in the U. S. Despite these factors , the price of eonsistent-eonsumption-year-over
year-and-tnereased-natural gas inventories-rebounded in the second half of 2024, to a point in which the December 2024

average price exceeded the December 2023 average price . Henry Hub natural gas spot prices have deereased-increased from
an average of $ 5-2 . $3-52 per one million British Thermal Units (£ MMBtu *” ) fer-in December 2022-2023 and-to $ 2-3 .
52-01 per MMBtu in December 2023-2024 . xxxviii The ongoing conflict in Ukraine and the evelvng-Israel- Hamas conflict
have caused uncertainty in the finanetal-markets-and-the-oil and natural gas markets, and the financial markets, both globally
and in the Ynited-States-U. S . Such uncertainty already has already-eansed;-and could continue to cause ystock price volatility
and supply chain disruptions as well as —Fhis-tneertainty-eoutd-eause-higher oil and natural gas prices. These Sueh-elevated
priees-could result in tarn-eanse-higher inflation worldwide , whieh-eewtd-impact consumer spending and negatively impact
demand for our goods and services. Moreover, additional interest rate increases by the U. S. Federal Reserve to combat
inflation could further increase the probability of a recession. Notwithstanding the significant commodity price volatility over
the past several years, we have seen decreases in United-States-enshore-drilling activity in —During-the Western Hemisphere.
Conversely, Eastern Hemisphere drilling activity has increased ycar over year. For the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, the weekly-monthly average Western Hemisphere B—S—enshererig count asteported-byBakerHughes-was 667
eempared—to—?’-@é—940 and 1, 040 rlgs, respectlvely, fer—~ ora decrease of 10 %. For the year-years ended December 31, 2022
2024 and : vity : 7 0 06-2023 , fevels-when-the weekly-monthly
average Eastern Hemlsphere rig count fer—t-he—yearended—BeeembeﬁH@%@—waq 418-747 and 732 rigs, respectively, or an
increase of 2 % . Inflation and Increased Costs We are experiencing the impacts of global inflation, both in increased personnel
costs and the prices of goods and services required to operate our rigs and execute capital projects. While we are currently
unable to e%tnnate the ultimate impact of rising pr1cei we do expect that our C0§t§ Wlll continue to rise 1n the near term and will

Operauon@ We use a number of hnane1al and opelatlonal measures to routinely analyze and evaluate the performance of our
business, including revenue, net and non- GAAP measures Adjusted EBITDA andFree-CashFeow-. Revenue, net We analyze
our performance by comparing actual monthly revenue to revenue trends and revenue forecasts by product line as well as tool
activity trends for each month. Our revenue is primarily derived from tool rental and product sales. We regularly evaluate our
financial performance using Adjusted EBITDA. Our management believes Adjusted EBITDA is a useful financial performance
measure as it excludes non- cash charges and other transactions not related to our core operating activities and allows more

meanlngful analqu of the trend% and performance of our core opelatloni We—eleﬁne—Free—Gﬂsh—F—lew—&s—ﬂet—eash—&lsed—m-}

tltled “ Non GAAP F1nanc1al Meaqurei ” below for a reconelhatlon of A Juqted EBITDA to net income (—loss)— the moqt
directly comparable financial performance measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP . ;and-areconetiation
of Free Cash Flow Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2024, we revised our presentation of non- GAAP measures
to net-exclude the presentation of free cash flow {ased-in y-alignment with industry practices and to enhance comparability
with our peers. The Company has determlned that GAAP dlsclosures regardmg the Company S llquldlty and capltal

resources, in the form provided by :
presented-in aceordanee-the Company’ s recent perlodlc reports and w1thout further enhancement through the inclusion
of non- GAAP free cash flow information, provide investors with GAAP-sufficient information on the Company’ s cash
available for investments, acquisitions, and working capital requirements . Key Components of Results of Operations Xxxxix
The discussion below relating to significant line items from our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income are based on available information and represent our analysis of significant changes or events that impact the
comparability of the reported amount. Where appropriate, we have identified specific events and changes that affect
comparability or trends and, where reasonably practicable, we have quantified the impact of such items. We currently generate
our revenue, net from tool rental services and product sales. Tool rental services ywhteh-eenststs— consist of rental services,
inspection services, and repair services s-and is accounted for underin accordance Topic 842. We recognize revenues from
renting tools on a straight- line basis. Our rental contract periods are daily, monthly, per well, or based on footage. As part of this
straight- line methodology, when the equipment is returned, we recognize as incremental revenue the excess, if any, efbetween
the amount the customer is contractually required to pay, which is based on the rental contract period applicable to the actual
number of days the drilling tool was out on rented—- rent, over the cumulative amount of revenue recognized to date. The
rental tool recovery component of product sales revenue is recognized when a tool is deemed to be lost- in- hole, damaged-
beyond- repair, or lost- in- transit while in the care, custody, or control of the customer. Other made to order product sales
revenue is recognized when the product is made-avaitable-to-picked up by the customer and control is transferred. Product
sale revenue is accounted for piekuap-at-our-shipping-doekin accordance with Topic 606 . We expect our tool rental services
revenue to 1nCIea§e due to an expected i increase in dr1111ng act1v1ty, customer pr1c1ng and market share. We expeet-otrproduet

expect that produet ialei revenue will increase as aged and consumable products Wlll cont1nue to be replaced in order to
maintain or increase capacity. Additionally, product sale focused acquisitions are expected to further increase product sale



revenue. Costs and Expenses Our costs and expenses consist of cost of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense,
and depreciation and amortization expense. Cost of Revenue Our cost of revenue consists primarily of all direct and indirect
expenses related to providing our tool rental services offering and delivering our product sales, including personnel- related
expenses and costs associated with maintaining the facilities. We expect our total cost of tool rental revenue and our total cost of
product sale revenue to increase in absolute dollars in future periods, corresponding to our anticipated growth in revenue and
employee headcount. This increase in headcount is intended to support our customers and maintain the manufacturing,
operations and field service team. The expected increase in these two costs builds- in some expected cost inflation. We expect
that gross margins will continue to improve slightly as we leverage our existing cost structure to increase our business activity.
However Hraddition-, we expect that-to see continued pricing pressure from etstomer-customers which may priee-inereases
witthelp-offsct eestinflationr-any incremental gains . Selling, General and Administrative Expense General and administrative
expenses consist primarily of personnel- related expenses, including salaries, benefits and stock- based compensation for
personnel, and outside professional services expenses including legal, audit and accounting services, insurance, other
administrative expenses and allocated facility costs for our administrative functions. x1 We expect our operating expenses to
increase in absolute dollars for the foreseeable future as a result of operating as a public company as well as the Company
continues to grow and scale operations . In particular, we expect our legal, accounting, tax, personnel- related expenses and
directors’ and officers’ insurance costs reported within general and administrative expense to increase as we establish more
comprehensive compliance and governance functions, increase security and IT compliance functions, review internal controls
over financial reporting in accordance with the Sarbanes- Oxley Act and prepare and distribute periodic reports as required by
the rules and regulations of the SEC. As a result, our historical results of operations may not be indicative of our results of
operations in future periods. Selling expenses consist primarily of personnel- related expenses, including salaries, benefits and
stock- based compensation for personnel, direct advertising, marketing and promotional material costs, sales commission
expense, consulting fees and allocated facility costs for our sales and marketing functions. We intend to increase investments in
our sales and marketing organization to increase revenue, expand our global customer base, and broaden our brand awareness.
We expect our sales and marketing expenses to continue to increase in absolute dollars for the foreseeable future. Depreciation
and Amortization Expense Depreciation and amortization expense relates to the consumption of our property and equipment,
which consists of rental tools, shop equipment, computer equipment, furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements, and the
amortization of our intangible assets mainly related to customer relationships, seftware-patents, and partrnerships-developed
technology . Other fexpense Haeeme-, net Our other expense Hnreeme-, net is primarily comprised of interest income
(expense), gain on sale of property, unrealized gain (loss) on securities, transaction related expenses, and other miscellaneous
income and expense unrelated to our core operations. Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022
The following table set forth our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- xli Year
EndedDecember 31, (In thousands) Revenue, net: Tool rental $ 117,926 $ 119, 239 $99,-048-Product sale 36, 520 32, 795 30;
538-Total revenue, net 154, 446 152, 034 429;-556-Operating costs and expenses: Cost of tool rental revenue 36-24 , 966-110 28,
27270 -58+Cost of product sale revenue 4-14 , 559-5-381 7 , 423-249 Selling, general, and administrative expense 78, 695 68,
264 54-566-Depreciation and amortization expense 23, 832 20, 352 +3;-789-Total operating costs and expenses 141, 018 124,
135 +64;279-Operating income 13, 428 27, 899 25;-2970ther expense, net: Interest expense, net ( 3,369) (1, 103 3H4%+) Gain
on sale of property Loss on asset disposal — (489) Unrealized-gain-Gain (loss) on remeasurement of previously held equity
seeurities-interest (255) Other expense, net ( 7, 503) ( 6, 359 H384-) Total other expense, net ( 10, 444) (8, 105 3566-) Income
before income tax expense 2, 984 19, 794 24-77FIncome tax expense (5, 046) 3697 -Net income $ 3,014 $ 14, 748 $24;,-080
Our revenue, net consists of tool rental and product sale revenues. Year Ended December 31, Change (In thousands) Amount %
Tool rental $ 117,926 $ 119, 239 $ 99-(1 , 848-$20,2214-313) (1) % Product sale $ 36,520 $ 32, 795 $ 306-3 , 725 538-$2,257
% Tool rental revenue inereased-decreased $ 206-1 . 2-3 million, or 268-1 %, to $ H9-117 . 229 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 as compared to $99-119 . 8-2 million for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The decrease was
primarily driven by decreased market activity and customer pricing across all divisions, especially in relation to our
Directional Tool Rentals (" DTR") division, the revenue of which decreased $ 6. 0 million, our Premium Tools Division
(" PTD"), the revenue of which decreased $ 0. 3 million. These decreases were offset by increases at our Wellbore
Optimization Tools (" WOT") division, the revenue of which increased $ 3. 3 million and additional tool rental revenue
added of $ 1. 9 million as a result of the acquisition of Deep Casing Tools (" DCT") which was acquired in March 2024
and European Drilling Projects (" EDP) which was acquired in October 2024. Product sale revenue increased $ 3. 7
million, or 11 %, to $ 36. S million for the year ended December 31, 2024 as compared to $ 32. 8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023 . The increase was primarily driven by the addltlon of DCT in March 2024 and DPD in August
2024. This inereased- increase was offset by a decrease ma v prietg-a v
relationrto-ourDireetional-Toeol-tool recovery Reﬁtaﬂ}s-%BT—R'—)—dﬁﬁsreﬁ—t-he—revenue asa result of whteh—mereased—lower than
average recovery events in 2024 as compared to 2023. Our cost of revenue consists of cost of tool rental revenue and cost
of product sale revenue. xlii Year Ended December 31, Change (In thousands) Amount % Cost of tool rental revenue $
24,16-110 $ 28 3-mithen, 270 $ eurPremivmToolsDPiviston-( 4 “PFDPY-, the-160) (15) % Cost of product sale revenue of
W‘ht€h—t1‘l€f6&3€d-$ 14 38157,24987, 132 % Cost of tool rental revenue decreased $ 4 . 2 million, and-etr— or 15 %




e 2023 ascompared-to-$27--6
mﬁmﬁ—fe{—ﬂ%e—feﬁﬂ&e—yea—eeﬂded-BeeefﬂbeHH@Q% Across all lelSlOHS the -rnefease—decrease in cost of tool rental revenue
was primarily driven by inereased-decreased labor and eests-as-weH-astnereased-repair costs due to inereased-decreased rental

activity as these expenses correlate directly to activity. Cost of product sale revenue deereased-increased $ 6-7 . 9-1 million,
or +6-98 %, to $ 14. 4 —6-million for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 as compared to $ 5-7 . 4-2 million for the for the
year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . The deerease-increase in cost of product sale revenue was primarily driven by the
addition of DCT, whose predominantly a product sales business, in March 2024 and the addition of DPD in August 2024.
Additionally, for the recovery events that occurred in 2024, the net book value of the tools lost- in- hole or damaged-
beyond- repair were higher than historical averages, indicating that the tools had a longer remaining useful life than in
prior years. As a result, cost of product sales associated with recovery events remained flat year over year while revenue
from recovery events deerease-decreased year over year inrmanufaeturing-eosts-during2623-. Selling, General, and
Administrative Expense Year Ended December 31, Change (In thousands) Amount % Selling, general, and administrative
expense $ 78, 695 $ 68, 264 § 510 , 431 566-$16,698-% Sclling, general, and administrative expense increased $ +6-10. 4
million, or 15 %, to $ 78 . 7 ﬂﬁ-rl-l-teﬁ—eHQ—%—te—$—6-8—3—mllhon for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 as compared to $
5468 . 6-3 million for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . This increase was primarily drlven by an increase in personnel-
related expenses directly related to the acqulsltlons completed this year of $ +6-6 . 5-1 million. Additionally, there was-an
were addtional inerease-increases in expenses incurred attributable as-aresult-ofthe-Merger-and-the-transitton-to the
acquisitions and the first full year of beeoming---- being a public company. Specifically, there was a $ +0 . 78 million
increase in stoek-optionrent related expenses, a $ 1. 4 million increase in accounting, legal, and advertising related expenses,
and a § 1. 24 million increase in insurance expenses. No other driver of this increase was individually significant. Year Ended
December 31, Change (In thousands) Amount % Depreciation and amortization expense $ 23, 832 $ 20, 352 $49-3 , 480 769-%
% Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $ -3 . 6-5 million, or 3-17 %, to § 268-23 . 4-8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 as compared to $ +9-20 . 8-4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . The increase was
primarily due an increase in depreciation expense resulting from a higher property, plant and equipment balance as of December
31,2623-2024 as well as an increase in amortization expense as result of intangible assets recognized during purchase
price accounting for the acquisitions . Interest Expense, net Year Ended December 31, Change (In thousands) Amount %
Interest expense, net $ (3,369) $ (1, 103) $ 2, 266 4FH-$-% Interest expense, net increased $ -2 . 6-3 million, or 434205 %,
to $ +3 . +4 million for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 as compared to $ 6-1 . 5-1 million for the year ended

December 31, 2—92—2—2023 The m&rﬁ—dﬂveieeﬂ-he—mcre%e was the-settlement-of the-interestrate-swap-onJuly 16,2023 -eausing

yeHhis—'mefease—ﬁas—paﬁ-iﬁ}yheffset—bya deefease-result of 1ncreased -$—9—6—m1-1-heﬂ-rn—1nte1est on xliii the revolvingHne-of
term loan entered into in March 2024 as well as the various draws on the credit facility throughout during-the-yearended

Deeember31+-2623-2024 asecompared-to-the-year-ended-Deeember31-, 2022-as-aresult-of therevolvingline-ofereditto-be-paid

December 31, Chdnoe (ln thouscmds) Amount % Other expense net $ ( 7, 503) $ ( 6, 359) b (3-84)—$—6—9—759—1 556—144) %
Other expenses, net increased by $ 6-1 . 6-1 million, or 18 +5556-%, to $ -7 . 4-5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023
2024 as compared to $ 8-6 . 4 million for the year ended December 31, 28222023 . The increase was primarily due to
transaction costs with-no-related to the acquisitions completed in 2024, which totaled $ 7. 0 million, as eemparable—--
compared aetivity-during-to transaction costs of $ 6. 0 million in 2622-2023 related to the merger . Non- GAAP Financial
Measures To supplement our consolidated financial statements, which are prepared and presented in accordance with GAAP, we
use certain non- GAAP financial measures, as described below, to understand and evaluate our core operating performance.
These non- GAAP financial measures, which may be different than similarly titled measures used by other companies, are
presented to enhance investors’ overall understanding of our financial performance and should not be considered a substitute for,
or super101 to, the financial mformdtlon prepcued and presented in dccordanee with GAAP We use the non- GAAP financial

gfeWﬁh—\Ve—use—fhe—ﬂefh—GA%:P—ﬁﬂ&netal—meast&e—Adjusted EBITDA Wthh 1S detmed as net income (loss), excludmg interest

income; interest expense; other income (expense), including those that do not reflect our core operating activities, net;
income tax benefit (expense); depreciation and amortization; and certain other non- cash erren—reetrring-items impacting net
income (loss) from time to time. We believe that Adjusted EBITDA helps identify underlying trends in our business that could
otherwise be masked by the effect of the expenses that we exclude in Adjusted EBITDA. These non- GAAP financial measures



should not be considered in isolation from, or as substitutes for, financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. There
are a number of limitations related to the use of these non- GAAP financial measures Compared to the clo%eqt comparable
GAAP measure. Some of these limitations are that: ¢ ash e fire-eontractaal-commitments:
Adjusted EBITDA excludes certain recurring, non- cash charges %uch as deprecratron of ﬁxed assets and amortization of
acquired intangible assets and, although these are non- cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be
replaced in the future . Adju%ted EBITDA excludes income tax beneﬁt (expense) xllv :Phe—fe-l-}ew-rﬂg—tab-}e—pfesenfs-a

reconcrhatron ofAdJueted EBITDA to net income ﬂess)—for the years ended Deeember 31,2024 and 2023 aﬁd—ZGQQ—(non—
recurring transaction expenses recorded to other (income) expense are presented separately within Adjusted EBITDA): Year
Ended December 31, (In thousands) Net income $ 3,014 $ 14, 748 $24;-680-Add (deduct): Income tax expense (30) 5, 046 3;
698-Depreciation and amortization 23, 832 20, 352 +9:-76%-Interest expense, net 3,369 1, 103 Stock option expense 2, 092 1,
661 —Management fees 1, 130 Gain on sale of property ( 60) ( 101 3342F) Loss on asset disposal — Pnrealized-Loss ( gain
{ess-) on remeasurement of previously held equity seetrittes-interest ( 234-368 ) Transaction expense 7, 036 5, 979 —ERE
ereditreeetved—4;272)-Other expense, net Adjusted EBITDA $ 40, 101 $ 51, 042 $44363-Liquidity and Capital Resources
On December 31, 2024 and 2023 and20622- we had $ 6. 2 million and $ 6. 0 mi-l-heﬂ—and—$—2.—4—mrlhon of cash and cash
equivalents, respectively. Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash on hand, cash flows generated by
operating activities and, if necessary, borrowings under the Credit Facility Agreement. We may use additional cash generated to
execute strategic acquisitions or for general corporate purposes. We believe that our existing cash on hand, cash generated from
operations and available borrowings under the Credit Facility Agreement will be sufficient for at least the next 12 months to
meet working capital requirements and anticipated capital expenditures. Reference is made to the disclosure set forth under the
heading ““ Revolving Credit Facility ”” in Note 8, Revolving Credit Facility, of the notes to the consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Report. Capital Expenditures Our capital expenditures relate to capital additions or improvements that
add to our rental or repair capacity or extend the useful life of our drilling tools and related infrastructure. Also, our capital
expenditures relate to the replacement of tools that are lost or damaged by a customer, and such expenditures are funded by a
rental tool recovery sale amount paid by the customer. We regularly incur capital expenditures on an on- going basis to (i)
increase the size of or maintain our rental tool fleet and equipment, (ii) extend the useful life of our rental tools and equipment
and (iii) acquire or upgrade computer hardware and software. The amount of our capital expenditures is influenced by, among
other things, demand for our services, recovery of lost or damaged tools, schedules for refurbishing our various rental tools and
equipment, cash flow generated by our operations, expected rates of return and cash required for other purposes. Contractual
Obligations and Commitments Our material contractual obligations arise from leases of facilities and vehicles under non-
cancellable operating leases agreements. See Note 15, Commitments and contingencies, of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Report. xlv Tax Obligations We currently have available federal net operating
loss carryforwards to offset our federal taxable income, and we expect that these carryforwards will substantially reduce our
cash tax payments over the next several years. If we forfeit these carryforwards for any reason or deplete them faster than
anticipated, our cash tax obligations could increase substantially. For additional information, see Note 11, Income Taxes, of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Report. Cash Flows The following table sets forth our
cash flows for the period indicated: Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) Net cash flows from: Operating activities $ 6, 058
$ 23, 334 $43;994-Investing activities ( 53, 586) (23, 864 H2;-536-) Financing activities 47, 885 4, 295 {9;33F-Effect of
changes in foreign exchange rate ( 175) ( 114) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ § 3, 651 $2,380-Cash Flows (Used
In) Provided by Operating Activities Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was $ 6. 1
million resulting from our net income of $ 3. 0 million, adjusted for non- cash charges of $ 29. 3 million in depreciation,
amortization, deferred financing, and leases, $ 2. 1 million of stock- based compensation expense and $ 0. 5 million of
other non- cash charges. This was partially offset by a $ 10. 0 million gain on rental tool recovery sales, $ 0. 8 million in
deferred tax benefits, $ 0. 4 million in unrealized gains on equity securities, and $ 17. 6 million in net changes from
operating assets and liabilities. The $ 17. 6 million in cash used in operating assets and liabilities is primarily due to a $ 4.
0 million cash outflow in accounts receivable associated with higher revenues in 2024, a $ 4. 3 million cash outflow
related to increased inventory purchases, a $ 4. 8 million cash outflow from operating lease liabilities as we increase
right- of- use assets on hand, and a $ 5. 3 million cash outflow due to a decrease in the account payable and accrued
expenses balances. These outflows were offset by a cash inflow related to prepaid expenses of $ 0. 9 million. We will
continue to evaluate our capital requirements for both short- term and long- term liquidity needs, which could be
affected by various risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the effects of the current inflationary
environment, rising interest rates, and other risks detailed in the section of this Report entitled “ Risk Factors. ” Net cash
provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2023, was $ 23. 3 million resulting from our net income of
$ 14. 7 million, adjusted for non- cash charges of $ 25. 0 million in depreciation and-, amortization, treludingamortizationof
rightefuseassetsand-deferred financing eests, and leases , $ 4. 0 million of stock- based compensation expense as a result of
the Merger, $ 0. 5 million of losses on asset disposals, $ 3. 4 million in deferred tax expense, and $ 0. 3 million of other non-
cash charges. This was partially offset by a $ 16. 7 million gain on rental tool recovery sales and $ 8. 1 million in net changes
from operating assets and liabilities. The $ 8. 1 million in cash used in operating assets and liabilities is primarily duetoa $ 1. 0
million cash outflow in accounts receivable associated with an increase in sales and higher revenues during 2023 compared to
2022, a $ 4. 4 million cash outflow from operating lease liabilities as we increase right- of- use assets on hand, a $ 1. 7 million
cash outflow from inventories due to purchased inventory related to our attempt to reduce risk and uncertainties in our supply



chain, and a $ 1. 5 million cash out flow in accounts payable due to differences in the timing of disbursements. This was partially
offset by a $ 0. 6 million cash inflow in accrued expenses due to differences in the timing of disbursements. We will continue to
evaluate our capital requirements for both short- term and long- term liquidity needs, which could be affected by various risks

and uncertarntres xlv1 Cash Flows (Used In) Prov1ded by Investlng Act1v1t1es me%udmg—bttt—net—l—rmﬁed—to—t-he—effeefs—e-ﬁt-he

-Fae’eorsiN et cash pfoﬁded—by—opefa{-mg—used in mvestmg activities for the year ended December 3 1 %92—2—2024 was $ +3-53.
6 mllllon. Purchases of property, plant and equlpment of $ 22 . 9 million —fesﬁ&ng—froﬁa—etnenet—meome-and cash spent in

proceeds from a—$—1—6—8—&n-1-hoﬁ—ga-m—eﬁ—rental tool recovery sales —of $ -1-4-15 3 mrlhon and proceeds -m—net—eh&nges—from sale

. doq . Cash-Flows(Used-Hn)
-P-reﬁded—by—l-nvesﬁng%et—r—ﬂﬂes—Net cash used in 1nvest1ng activities for the year ended December 31,2023 was $ 23. 9 million.
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment of $ 43. 8 million were partially offset by proceeds from rental tool recovery sales

of $ 19. 7 million and proceeds from sale ofproperty of$ 0.2 mrlhon NeteashusedHnrinvesting-aetivitiesfor-the-yearended

Pr ovrded by Fi 1nanc1ng Actlvrtres Net cash provrded by ﬁnancrng actrvrtres for the year ended December 31,2024 was $47.9
million resulting from proceeds from the revolving line of credit of $ 38. 6 million and proceeds from long- term debt of §
25. 0 million. These inflows were offset by payments on the revolving credit facility of $ 11. S million, payments on long-
term debt of $ 3. 5 million, and payments of debt issuance costs of $ 0. 7 million. Net cash provided by financing activities
for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $ 4. 3 million resulting from proceeds from the Merger and PIPE Financing, net of
transaction costs, of $ 23. 1 million. This was partially offset by a complete paydown on the Credit Facility Agreement of $ 18.

3 mrlhon payments of deferred ﬁnancrng costs of $ 0.3 mrlhon and payments to holders of DTIH convertible preferred stock in

Pohcres and Estnnates In preparrng our annual ﬁnancral statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America (“ GAAP ), we make numerous estimates and assumptions that affect the accounting for and
recognition and disclosure of assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. We must make these estimates and assumptions
because certain information that we use is dependent on future events, cannot be calculated with a high degree of precision from
available data or is not otherwise capable of being readily calculated based on generally accepted methodologies. In some cases,
these estimates are particularly difficult to determine, and we must exercise significant judgment. Actual results could differ
materially from the estimates and assumptions that we use in the preparation of our financial statements. We identify certain
accounting policies as critical based on, among other things, their impact on the portrayal of our financial condition and results
of operations and the degree of difficulty, subjectivity and complexity in their deployment. Note 1, Summary of significant
accounting policies, to the financial statements included elsewhere in this Report includes a summary of the significant
accounting policies used in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The critical accounting
estimates, assumptions and judgments we believe to have the most significant impact on the annual financial statements are
described below. See Note 1, Summary of significant accounting policies, to the financial statements included elsewhere in this
Report for additional information related to critical accounting estimates and significant accounting policies. Revenue
recognition On January 1, 2019, we adopted Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ) 606 on a modified retrospective
basis for all contracts with customers. As a result of the adoption, there were no material changes to the timing of the revenue
recognition or measurement of revenue. Therefore, the only changes to the financial statements related to the adoption are in the
disclosures as included herein. We adopted ASC 842, Leases (“ ASC 842 ) as of January 1, 2022. ASC 842 was adopted using
the modified retrospective transition approach, with no restatement of prior periods or cumulative adjustments to retained
earnings. xlvii We recognize revenue in accordance with two different accounting standards: 1) Topic 606 (which addresses
revenue from contracts with customers) and 2) Topic 842 (which addresses lease revenue). We derive our revenue from two
revenue types: tool rental services and product sales. Tool Rental Services Tool rental services consist of rental services,
inspection services, and repair services. Tool rental services are accounted for under Topic 842. Owned tool rentals represent our
most significant revenue type and are governed by our standard rental contract. We account for such rentals as operating leases.
The lease terms are included in the contracts, and the determination of whether our contracts contain leases generally does not
require significant assumptions or judgments. Owned tool rentals represent revenue from renting tools that we own. We do not
generally provide an option for the lessee to purchase the rented equipment at the end of the lease. The Company recognizes
revenues from renting tools on a straight- line basis. The Company’ s rental contract periods are daily, monthly, or per well. As
part of this straight- line methodology, when the equipment is returned, the Company recognizes as incremental revenue the
excess, if any, between the amount the customer is contractually required to pay, which is based on the rental contract period



applicable to the actual number of days the drilling tool was out on rent, over the cumulative amount of revenue recognized to
date. In any given accounting period, the Company will have customers return the drilling tool and be contractually required to
pay the Company more than the cumulative amount of revenue recognized to date under the straight- line methodology.
Additionally, the Company has rental contracts that are based on usage, either on a per footage or per well basis. As these types
of rental contracts primarthy-consist of variable lease payments, which are unknown at commencement , as well as a fixed
payment component , revenue is recognized when the changes in the factor on which the contingent lease payments are based
occur , in an amount equal to the excess of the fixed component . When the customer returns the rental equipment and the
footage or usage becomes known, the Company recognizes revenue. We record the amounts billed to customers in excess of
recognizable revenue as deferred revenue on our consolidated balance sheet. As noted above, we are unsure of when the
customer will return rented drilling tools. As such, we do not know how much the customer will owe us upon return of the tool
and we therefore cannot provide a maturity analysis of future lease payments. Our drilling tools are generally rented for short
periods of time ;-oftentimes-for-signifieantlytess-than-a-year-. Lessees do not provide residual value guarantees on rented
equipment. We expect to derive significant future benefits from our drilling tools following the end of the rental term. Our
rentals are generally short- term in nature, and our tools are typically rented for the majority of the time that we own them.
Product Sales Product sales consist of charges for rented tools that are damaged beyond repair, charges for lost- in- hole, and
charges for lost- in- transit while in the care, custody or control of our customers, and other charges for made to order product
sales. Product sales are accounted for under Topic 606. Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is
transferred to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. To determine revenue recognition for our arrangements with customers, we: (i) identify the contract (s)
with a customer; (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation. We account for a contract when we have approval and commitment from both parties, the rights of the
parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance, and collectability of consideration is
probable. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer xlviii and is
the unit of account in the revenue standard. The transaction price is measured as consideration specified in a contract with a
customer and excludes any sales incentives and taxes or other amounts collected on behalf of third parties. As each of our
contracts with customers contain a single performance obligation to provide a product sale (in some cases, multiple products
in one contract which each represent a single performance) , we do not have any performance obligations requiring
allocation of transaction prices. The performance obligation for made to order product sales is satisfied and revenue is
recognized when control of the asset transfers to the customer, which typically occurs upon delivery of the product or when the
product is picked up made-available-to-the-eustomer-for-ptekup-at our shipping dock. Additionally, pursuant to the contractual
terms with our customers, the customer must notify us of, and purchase from us, any rented tools that are damaged beyond
repair, lost- in- hole, or lost- in- transit while in the care, custody or control of such customer. Revenue is recognized for these
products when the customer notifies us that one of these noted events has occurred. We do not have any material revenue
expected to be recognized in the future related to remaining performance obligations or contracts with variable consideration
related to undelivered performance obligations. There was no revenue recognized in the current period from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods. Contract estimates and judgments Our revenues accounted for under Topic 606
generally do not require significant estimates or judgments, primarily because: ¢ The transaction price is generally fixed and
stated in our contracts; * As noted above, out contracts generally do not include multiple performance obligations, and
accordingly, do not require estimates of standalone selling price for each performance obligation; * Our revenues do not include
material-ameounts-of-variable consideration, or result in significant obligations associated with returns, refunds, or warranties; and
* Most of our revenue is recognized when the applicable performance obllgatlons are readrly determrnable As noted above, our
Topic 606 revenue is generally recognized at the time of shipping v vatle
or upon notification from our customers that a rented tool is damaged beyond repair, lost in- hole, or lost- in- transrt Whlle in
the ear-care , custody, or control of our customers. Our revenues accounted for under Topic 842 also generally do not require
51gn1ﬁcant estimates or Judgments We monitor and review our estrmated standalone selllng prrces ona regular basis. Fair-Value

—Stock- Based Compensatron We account for stock- based compensatron in accordance
with ASC 718, Compensation Stock Compensation. ASC 718 requires that the cost of awards of equity instruments offered in
exchange for employee services, 1nclud1ng employee stock optlons and restrlcted stock awards, be measured based on the grant-
date fair value of the award —¥ ; \e ; ; ; :

aterte : i ; ; . We determlne the falr Value of stock options granted using
the Black- Scholes Merton optlon pricing model (“ Black- Scholes model ”’) and recognizes the cost over the period during



which an employee is required to provide seerce in exchange for the award generally the Vestmg per10d w1th forfeltures
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adopted ASC 842 Leases (“ ASC 842 ”) as ofJanuary 1, 2022 ASC 842 was adopted using the modlﬁed retrospectlve
transition approach, with no restatement of prior periods or cumulative adjustments to retained earnings. Upon adoption, we
elected the package of transition practical expedients, which allowed us to carry forward prior conclusions related to whether
any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, the lease classification for any expired or existing leases and initial direct
costs for existing leases. We elected the use- of- hindsight to reassess lease term. We elected not to recognize leases with an
initial term of 12 months or less within the consolidated balance sheets and to recognize those lease payments on a straight- line
basis in the consolidated statements of operation over the lease term. The new lease accounting standard also provides practical
expedients xlix for an entity’ s ongoing accounting. We elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non- lease
components for all leases. We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating
lease right- of- use (“ ROU ”) assets and current operating lease liabilities and operating lease liabilities, net of current portion on
our consolidated balance sheets. We recognize lease expense for its operating leases on a straight- line basis over the term of the
lease. ROU assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to
make lease payments arising from a lease. ROU assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date
based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term. Operating lease ROU assets also include
the impact of any lease incentives. An amendment to a lease is assessed to determine if it represents a lease modification or a
separate contract. Lease modifications are reassessed as of the effective date of the modification using an incremental borrowing
rate based on the information available at the commencement date. For modified leases we also reassess the lease classification
as of the effective date of the modification. The interest rate used to determine the present value of the future lease payments is
our incremental borrowing rate because the interest rate implicit in our leases is not readily determinable. The incremental
borrowing rate is estimated to approximate the interest rate on a collateralized basis with similar terms and payments, and in
economic environments where the leased asset is located. Our lease terms include periods under options to extend or terminate
the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option in the measurement of its ROU assets and liabilities. We
consider contractual- based factors such as the nature and terms of the renewal or termination, asset- based factors such as
physical location of the asset and entity- based factors such as the importance of the leased asset to our operations to determine
the lease term. We generally use the base, non- cancelable lease term when determining the ROU assets and lease liabilities. The
ROU asset is tested for impairment in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 360, Property, Plant, and
Equipment. Lessor Accounting Our leased equipment primarily consists of rental tools and equipment. Our agreements with our
customers for rental equipment contain an operating lease component under ASC 842 because (i) there are identified assets, (ii)
the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the identified asset throughout the
period of use and (iii) the customer directs the use of the identified assets throughout the period of use. Our lease agreement
contract periods are daily, monthly, per well, or based on footage. Lease revenue is recognized on a straight- line basis based on
these rates. We do not provide an option for the lessee to purchase the rented tools at the end of the lease and the lessees do not
provide residual value guarantees on the rented assets. We recognized operating lease revenue within the “ Tool Rental Revenue
” line on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Long- Lived Asset Impairment We evaluate the
recoverability of identifiable intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an intangible asset’ s
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to, (1) a significant decrease in
the market value of an asset, (2) a significant adverse change in the extent to or manner in which an asset is used, or (3) an
accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition of an asset. We measure the
carrying amount of the asset against the estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with it. Should the sum of the
expected future net cash flows be less than the carrying value of the asset being evaluated, an impairment loss would be
recognized. The impairment loss would be calculated as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair
value. The fair value is measured based on quoted market prices, if available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
estimate of fair value is based on various valuation techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash flows.
The evaluation of asset impairment requires us to make assumptions about future cash flows over the life of the asset being
evaluated. These assumptions require significant judgment and actual results may differ from assumed and estimated amounts.
For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, management determined that there was no impairment with regard
to our intangible assets. For property, plant and equipment, events or circumstances indicating possible impairment may include
a significant decrease in market value or a significant change in the business climate. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset
and its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is the excess of the asset’ s carrying amount over its fair value.
For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, management determined that there was no impairment with regard
to our property, plant, and equipment . Goodwill We use the acquisition method to account for business combinations and,
to the extent that the purchase price exceeds the fair value of the net assets acquired, we record goodwill. In accordance



with U. S. GAAP, we are required to evaluate our goodwill at least annually. We perform our annual goodwill
assessment as of December 31, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Qualitative factors that indicate
impairment could include, but are not limited to, (i) macroeconomic conditions, (ii) industry and market considerations,
(iii) cost factors, (iv) overall financial performance of the reporting unit, and (v) other relevant entity- specific events.
The first step in our annual goodwill assessment is to perform the optional qualitative assessment allowed by ASC Topic
350 « Intangibles- Goodwill and Other ” (ASC 350). In our qualitative assessment, we evaluate relevant events or
circumstances to determine whether it is more likely than not (i. e., greater than 50 %) that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount. If we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount, ASC 350 requires us to compare the fair value of such reporting unit to its carrying
value including goodwill. To determine the fair value of our reporting units, we use multiple valuation techniques
including a discounted cash flow analysis, using the applicable weighted average cost of capital, in combination with a
market approach that uses market multiples and a selection of guideline public companies. This test requires us to make
assumptions about the future growth of our business and the market in general, as well as other variables such as the
level of investment in capital expenditure, growth in working capital requirements and the terminal or residual value of
our reporting units beyond the periods of estimated annual cash flows. We may use a third- party valuation firm to assist
us with this analysis. If the fair value of each reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, no action is required. Otherwise,
an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of the reporting unit including goodwill exceeds
the fair value of that reporting unit. We believe the estimates and assumptions used in our impairment assessment are
reasonable based on available market information, but variations in any of the assumptions could result in materially
different calculations of fair value and determinations of whether or not an impairment is indicated during current or
future periods. Business Combinations We account for business combinations using the acquisition method of
accounting in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations. On the acquisition date for a business combination, we
allocate the total purchase consideration for the acquisition to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
respective estimated fair values on the acquisition date. Additionally, we identify and attribute fair values and estimated
lives to acquired intangible assets. We identify an acquired intangible asset apart from goodwill whenever the intangible
asset arises from contractual or other legal rights, or when it can be separately sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or
exchanged. We recognize goodwill, if any, in the amount by which the aggregate fair value of the total purchase
consideration exceeds the aggregate fair value of the net assets (including intangible assets) acquired. In determining the
fair values of assets acquired (including intangible assets) and liabilities assumed, we utilize a variety of methods. Each
asset acquired and liability assumed is measured at fair value from the perspective of a market participant. The methods
used to estimate the fair values of intangible assets incorporate significant estimates and assumptions regarding the
estimates a market participant would make in order to evaluate an asset, including, but not limited to, a market
participant’ s use of the asset as well as forecasts for cash flows, revenue growth, asset lives, customer attrition rates,
royalty rates, income tax rates, and discount rates. We believe that the estimated fair values assigned to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are based on reasonable assumptions that a market participant would use. While we use
our best estimates and assumptions to value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, our estimates
are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. The use of different assumptions related to these uncertain factors at
acquisition could result in material changes to the amounts initially recorded at acquisition, which could have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. When appropriate, we engage third- party valuation specialists to assist
in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the initial accounting for a business
combination has not been completed by the end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs,
provisional amounts are reported to present information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. We must complete the accounting for each business combination during its measurement period, which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date. Adjustments made during the measurement period could have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. Costs that are directly attributable to business combinations are
expensed as incurred within other expenses, net, on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
The results of operations of acquisitions are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition
. Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards A discussion of recent accounting pronouncements is included in Note 1,
Summary of significant accounting policies, to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. JOBS Act
Accounting Election In April 2012, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “ JOBS Act ), was enacted. Section
107 of the JOBS Act provides that an “ emerging growth company ” may take advantage of the extended transition period
provided in Section 7 (a) (2) (B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. Therefore, an
emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to
private companies. We have irrevocably elected to avail ourselves of this extended transition period and, as a result, we will not
adopt new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for other public
companies. In addition, as an emerging growth company, we may take advantage of certain reduced disclosure and other
requirements that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. DTI will take advantage of these exemptions until
such earlier time that it is no longer an emerging growth company. DTI would cease to be an emerging growth company on the
date that is the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of the completion of the
offering on December 6, 2021 ; (ii) the last day of the fiscal year in which its total annual gross revenue is equal to or more than
$ 1.67-235 billion (iii) the date on which it has issued more than $ 1. 0 billion in nonconvertible debt during the previous three
years or (iv) the date on which it is deemed to be a large accelerated filer under the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures



about Market Risk Credit risk Financial instruments which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and accounts receivable. We maintain cash and cash equivalents with major and reputable financial
institutions. Deposits held with these financial institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation and Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation on such deposits but may be redeemed upon demand. We
perform periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these financial institutions. With respect to accounts receivable,
we monitor the credit quality of our customers as well as maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments. Concentration risk During the years ended December 31,
2024, 28 % of our total revenue was earned from two of our customers Durlng the years ended December 31, 2023, 39 %
of our total revenue was earned from three of our customers. Buring ea d-Deeembe 6
revente-was-earned-fronttwo-ofour-etstomers—Amounts due from these customers 1ncluded in accounts recelvable at
December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 20222023 were approximately $ 6. 3 million and $ 11. | millienand $-8-6
million, respectively. Foreign currency risk Our customers are primarily located in the United States and Canada , but through
the recent acquisitions, this has expanded to include customers located located in countries all across the globe .
Therefore, foreign exchange risk exposures arise from transactions denominated in currencies other than the U. S. dollar, which
is our functional and reporting currency. To date, a majority of our sales have been denominated in United States and Canadian
dollars but we expect more sales to be denominated in other foreign currencies as we continue to expand globally . As we
expand our presence in international markets, our results of operations and cash flows may increasingly be subject to
fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and may be adversely affected in the future due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. To date, we have not entered into any hedging arrangements to minimize the impact of these fluctuations
in the exchange rates. We will periodically reassess our approach to manage our risk relating to fluctuations in currency rates.
We do not believe that foreign currency risk had a material effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations
during the periods presented. Inflation Risk We expect we will continue to experience inflationary pressures on our cost
structure for the foreseeable future. However, tightness in overseas freight and transit times from have eased. Nonetheless, we
cannot be confident that transit times or input prices will return to the lower levels experienced in prior years. Continued
inflation and looming concerns regarding a possible recession weigh on the outlook for oil demand which could in turn
negatively impact demand for our goods and services. Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. DRILLING
TOOLS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID Number 410) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 =,
2024 and 2023 and2022-Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2622-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Shareholder' s
Equity for the Years Ended December 31 2024, and 2023 ;and2622-Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Years
Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Fe-the-Board of Directors and
Shareholders ef-Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Drilling Tools International Corporation (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, and the
related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in redeemable
convertible preferred stock and shareholders’ equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2823-2024 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements
). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Basis for Opinion These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the entity’ s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (" PCAOB") and are required
to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our
audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. /s / Weaver and Tidwell, L. L. P. Austin Sldahoma-City—, Oldahoma-Texas March 28-14 , 2624-2025 We
have served as the Company ' s auditor since 2022. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS December 31, December 31, (In
thousands, except share data) ASSETS Current assets Cash $ 6, 185 $ 6, 003 $2,352-Accounts receivable, net 39, 606 29, 929
28-Related party note receivable , 998-current — Inventories, net 17, 502 5, 034 3;284+-Prepaid expenses and other current
assets 3, 874 4, 553 4:-38+-Investments- equity securities, at fair value — 45443-Total current assets 68, 076 46, 408 40455
Property, plant and equipment, net 75, 571 65, 800 44;454-Operating lease right- of- use asset 22, 718 18, 786 26;-63%
Intangible assets, net 37, 232 Goodwill 12, 147 — Deferred financing costs, net Related party note receivable, less current
portion 4, 262 — Deposits and other long- term assets 1, 608 Total assets § 222,431 $ 132, 498 $305 248 IABILITIES 5




REDEEMABEE-CONVERTHBEEPREFERRED-STOEK-AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Current liabilities Accounts
payable § 11, #5+983 § 7, 28+751 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 7, 864 10, 579 #299-Current portion of
operating lease liabilities 4, 121 3, 958 Current maturities 3;3HRevolvingtine-of ereditlong- term debt 6, 995 — 18,349
Total current liabilities 30, 963 22, 288 36;246-Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 18, 765 14, 893 +6-Long term
debt , 69+net of current portion 19, 676 — Revolving line of credit 27, 142 Deferred tax liabilities, net 5, 926 6, 627 3485
Total habllmeq 102 472 43, 808 56—1—1-6—(01nmltment§ and contlnoenCleS (See Note 15) Redeemab-}e-eenvei-‘rrb-}e—pfefeﬁed

H@%—aﬁd—BeeembeHH@%%—fespeefwebr—H—S%S—Shareholder% equity Common stock *- $ 0. 0001 par Value -$—9—999—1—
566-, 600,-600-shares-and-65;,-006,-600-shares authorized at-500, 000, 000 as of December 31, %92—3—2024 and December 31,

2022-2023 | respeetively:-34, 704, 696 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 29, 768, 568 shares and
-1—1—95—1—1—3—7’—shﬁfes—19§ued and out%tandmg at-as of December 31 2023 ﬁﬂd—Beeem-beH-l—Z-GQ—Z—respeefﬂﬁ}y—Pfefeﬁed-s’feeie

Addmonal pald in- Capltal

125 415 95 218 52—3-8-8—Accumulated dehclt ( 3, 582) ( 6 306)
312623-and-Deeember3+2022———Accumulated other complehenqlve loss (1, 877) ( 225 9—61—1—1—) Total shareholders'

equity 119, 959 88, 690 3—1—2—2-4—T0ta1 habllmeq —fedeemab}e—eeﬁvef&b{e—pfefeffed-s’feeieand ihareholderq equlty $ 222,431 8

ﬁ&eﬁeﬁ*el—y—festated—te—gw&effeet—te—&l&Mefger—The accompanying notes are an 1nte0ra1 part of the@e con@ohdated financial
statements. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except share and per share data) Revenue, net: Tool rental $ 117,926 $ 119, 239 $99-648-Product sale 36, 520
32, 795 36;:-538-Total revenue, net 154, 446 152, 034 429:-556-Operating costs and expenses: Cost of tool rental revenue 36-24 ,
960-110 28, 27270 --58+Cost of product sale revenue 4-14 , 559-5-381 7 , 423-249 Seclling, general, and administrative expense
78, 695 68, 264 54H-566-Depreciation and amortization expense 23, 832 20, 352 49:-769-Total operating costs and expenses 141,
018 124, 135 +64;279-Operating-ineome-Income from operations 13, 428 27, 899 25;:277-Other expense, net: Interest
expense, net (3,369) ( 1, 103 3474) Gain on sale of property Loss on asset disposal — (489) —Unrealized-gain-Gain (loss)
on remeasurement of previously held cquity seeurities-interest (255) Other income ( expense ) , net (7, 503) (6, 359 H384)
Total other expense, net ( 10, 444) ( 8, 105 H566-) Income before income tax expense 2, 984 19, 794 24-F7FIncome tax (
expense ) / benefit (5, 046 3H35698-) Net income $ 3,014 § 14, 748 $245-680-Accumulated dividends on redeemable
convertible preferred stock —4;3489-Net income available to common shareholders $ 3, 014 $ 14, 434 $19,-894-Basic earnings
per share $ 0. 09 $ 0. 67 $3--66-Diluted earnings per share $ 0. 09 $ 0. 59 $4--07Basic weighted- average common shares
outstanding #-31, 938, 847 21, 421, 610 H595+43FDiluted weighted- average common shares outstanding #-32, 308, 179 25,
131, 024 +9;-677-507-Comprehensive income: Net income $ 3, 014 $ 14, 748 $24-080-Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax ( 1, 652) ( 114) Net comprehensive income $ 1,362 $ 14, 634 $24;253-CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock Freasary-Steel—(In thousands, except share and per share
data) Shares-Ameunt-Shares Amount Shares Amount AdditionalPaid- InCapital AccumulatedDeficit
AccumulatedOtherComprehen%lveL09% TotalShaleholdem Equlty BALANCE Decembe1 31 %92—1—29—349—37—7%—1—6—6-895—3—

719 641 $ 17, 878 11, 951 137 $-—$-$ 52, 388 $ (21, 054) $ (111) $ 31, 224 Net exercise of qtock optlonq by DTIH
stockholder (Note 2)-- 36, 163----- -—Accretion of redeemableconvertible preferred stock to redemption value prior to closing of
the Merger —--- (314)-- (314) Exchange of DTIH redeemable convertible preferred stock for DTIC Common Stock (Note 2) (6,
719, 641) (18, 192) 6, 719, 641 —7, 192-- 7, 193 Issuance of DTIC Common Stock to former holders of DTIH redeemable
convertible preferred stock in connection with Exchange Agreements (Note 2)-- 2, 042, 181-=—10, 805-- 10, 805 Merger, net of
redemptions and transaction costs (Note 2)-- 5, 711, 721 —(8, 839)-- (8, 838) Issuance of DTIC Common Stock in connection
with the consummation of the PIPE Financing (Note 2)-- 2, 970, 296- =30, 000-- 30, 000 Stock- based compensation-- 337, 429
-—- 3, 986-- 3, 986 Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax------ —(114) (114) Net income----- —14, 748- 14, 748
BALANCE, December 31, 2023- $- 29, 768, 568 $ —$-8 95, 218 $ (6, 306) $ (225) $ 88, 690 Stock- based compensation----
1, 647-- 1, 647 Shares issued due to vesting of restricted stock units-- 74, 440--- Exercise of stock options-- 16, 556- (290)-
(35) Issuance of Common Stock related to business combinations-- 4, 845, 132- 27, 714-- 27, 714 Accelerated vesting of
substitute stock options------ Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax------ (1, 652) (1, 652) Net income----- 3,
014- 3, 014 BALANCE, December 31, 2024- $- 34, 704, 696 $ $ 125,415 $ (3, 582) $ (1, 877) $ 119, 959 CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) Cash flows from operating activities: Net income
$3,014 $ 14, 748 $24;,-086-Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: Depreciation and
amortization 23, 832 20, 352 $9;-799-Amortization of deferred financing costs Amertization-of-debt-diseeunt—Non- cash lease
expense 5,121 4, 515 4,439-Unrealized loss on currency remeasurement — Provision for excess and obsolete inventory —
Provision for excess and obsolete property and equipment — Provision for credit losses Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
(778) 3, 443 Loss on asset disposal — Bad-debt-expense-Deferred-tax-expense-3;44315-086-Gain on sale of property ( 60) (
101) H2FHYnrealized-Realized {gaim)-loss on equity securities — 234)-Unrealized (gain) loss on equity securities interestrate
swap—( 368 +-423-) Realized loss on interest rate swap — Gross profit from sale of lost- in- hole equipment ( 10, 027) ( 16,



686 HH6;-843-) Stock- based compensation expense 2, 092 3, 986 —Interest Income on related party note receivable (151)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable, net ( 4, 015) (1, 048 95-268-) Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 3;-4#6)-Inventories, net ( 4, 320) ( 1, 716) £386)-Deposits and other current feng—termassets — (496) Operating
lease liabilities (4, 832) (4, 415 H4;+74-) Accounts payable (78) (1, 552 3H45432-) Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 4-(8 , 868-220) Net cash flows from operating activities 6, 058 23, 334 43;-994-Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of a business, net of cash acquired (47, 258) — Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 5-842-Purchase of
property, plant and equipment ( 22, 892) (43, 750 H247688-) Proceeds from sale of lost- in- hole equipment 15, 253 19, 684 2+
Proceeds from sale of equity securities 1 , ++6-244 — Purchases of intangible assets (12) — Net cash flows from investing
activities ( 53, 586) (23, 864 H2;-536-) Cash flows from financing activities: Proceeds from Merger and PIPE Financing, net of
transaction costs — 23, 162 —Payment of deferred financing costs ( 722) ( 324 325+) Proceeds from revolving line of credit
38, 618 73, 050 +68;-594-Payments on revolving line of credit ( 11, 476) (91, 399) (-+6-Proceeds from long- term debt 25 ,
6703000 — Payments on long- term debt (3, 535) — (1;-000)Rayments-on-finaneeteases—0)-Payments to holders of DTIH
redeemable convertible preferred stock in connection with retiring their DTI stock upon the Merger — (194) —Net cash flows
from financing activities 47, 885 4, 295 9:33A-Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate ( 175) ( 114) Net Change in Cash
3, 651 2;380-Cash at Beginning of Period 6, 003 2, 352 Cash at End of Period $ 6, 185 $ 6, 003 $2,-352-Supplemental cash
flow information: Cash paid for interest $ 2, 673 $ 1, 174 $Cash paid for income taxes $ 2,970 $ 3, 006 $Non- cash investing
and financing activities: Fair value of CTG liabilities assumed in CTG Acquisition $ 3, 162 $ — Fair value of SDPI
liabilities assumed in SDPI Acquisition $ 6, 246 $ — Fair value of EDP liabilities assumed in EDP Acquisition $ 1, 769 $
— ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities $ 5, 737 $ 3, 264 Non- cash recovery of note receivable $ #9678 —
Net exercise of stock options $ $ — Shares withheld from exercise of stock options for payment of taxes $ $ — Purchases
of inventory included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 1, 176 $ Purchases of
property and equlpment 1nc1uded in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current lldbllltleS $ § Parehases-of

y d : s d 2 rt-tab s$-1, 422 $Non- cash
directors md officers insurance $ — $ —Non- Cdsh Melgel 1‘1nancmﬂ $—82, ()()() -$—Exchcmoe of DTIH redeemable
convertible preferred stock for DTIC Common Stock in connection with Merger $ — $ 7, 193 $——Issuance of DTIC Common
Stock to former holders of DTIH redeemable convertible preferred stock in connection with Exchange Agreements $ — $ 10,
805 $—Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to redemption value § — $ :5489-NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF
SHMNEHANT-- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Organization and StraetareBriHing-Structure Drilling Tools
International Corporation, a Delaware corporation (" DTIC" or the" Company"), manufactures, rents, inspects, and refurbishes
downhole drilling tools primarily to companies in the oil and natural gas industry for bottom hole assemblies used in onshore
and offshore horizontal and directional drilling. On Jure-March 15, 2024 (the “ CTG Acquisition Date ), we entered into a
Share Purchase Agreement (the “ Share Purchase Agreement ) with Casing Technologies Group Limited (“ CTG ”),
certain shareholders of CTG, and a representative of CTG. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement, the
Company acquired one hundred percent (100 %) of the shares of CTG (the “ CTG Acquisition ), which wholly owns
Deep Casing Tools Limited (“ Deep Casing ”), an energy technology development company, for approximately £ 16. 2
million, or § 20 . 9 million %92—3—6based on the LGk)smg—Brltlsh pound sterhng to Unlted States dollar exchange rate on

the CTG Acquisition Date “-a-mergertransactionbe g G 0 gs;ine-. For further details
Ge-rp—(LRee)— refer to aﬂd—RQGMefger—Sﬂb—Iﬂe—a—dﬁee&y—

regardlng the (LBT—I-HL)—RGGE-nefgy—Aeqﬁm&en—acqulsmon

N

A;:reement” by -rts—eﬂt-lﬂy—mte—&n—Agreemeﬂt—dnd among P—l&n—e—PMefgeithe Company, —S-BP-I—Merger—Ag-feeﬂ&ehti)—wrt-h

Superior Drilling Products,Inc. ,a Utah eorporation (“ SDPI ”"),DTI Merger Sub [,Inc. ,a Delaware corporation and directly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“ Merger Sub [ ), and Merger DTI Merger Sub ILLLC ,a Delaware limited
hablhty company and wholly owned subs1d1ary of the Company (* Mers_er Sub II), pursuant to w ‘hich ;ameng-other

g Merger Sub | wi-be-merged with
and into SDPI (the “ First Eveﬁt—Merger ), W 1th SDPI eeﬁt-rnu-rng—survwmg asa wholly owned subsidiary of DTI and upon
the effective time of the First Merger (the “ First Effective Time ”),SDPI, as the surviving corporation of the First Merger

iI-n-rt-ta-l—Sﬂ-r\ﬂ-*ﬂ-ng—G(-)-1=1fyoi=zatt-toﬂi)— ti-the-nttial-Surviving-Corporation-witkbe-merged with and into Merger Sub II (the
Second EventMerger ,” and together with the First EventMerger ,the *“ SBRFMerger ), with Merger Sub I eentinting

surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of the survivinglimited-tiability-eompany-(the—~Sarviving-Company 2;and-. In
eonneetioraccordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement, the closing of the Merger occurred on July 31 , RO€
changedtsname-2024 (the “ SDPI Closing Date ” or “ SDPI Closing ) for total consideration of $ 47. 9 million. For
further details regarding the acquisition, refer to Note 3-"" Business Combinations." On October 3, 2024, the Company’ s
wholly owned subsidiary, Drilling Tools International €erperatiernr, Inc., entered the Share Purchase Agreement with
European Drilling Projects B. V. (“ EDP ”), and the sole shareholder of EDP, to acquire 100 % of the shares of EDP .
The eommen-stoek-total purchase prlce of BT—IG%BT—IGGeﬁﬂﬂen—SGOthhe acquisition was $ 13. 9 million. ex-For
further details the ading-- regarding en-the acquisition Nasdag-StoekMarket
= = = = , refer to 2623—See-Note 3 — “ Business Combinations ;-Merger-for
further-diseussion—. ” The Company’ s United States (“ U. S. ) operations have locations in Texas, California, Louisiana,
Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, North Dakota, New Mexico, Utah, and Wyoming. The Company’ s international operations are
located in Canada with additional stocking points in Europe asre-, the Middle East , and Asia- Pacific . Operations outside the
U. S. are subject to risks inherent in operating under different legal systems and various political and economic environments.




Among the risks are changes in existing tax laws and possible limitations on foreign investment. The Company does not engage
in hedging activities to mmgate its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Basis of PresentationThe-—--
Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ”) as set forth by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (" FASB") and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (“ SEC 7). References to US GAAP issued by the FASB in these notes to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are to the FASB Accountmg Standardq Codlflcatlon% (“ ASC ) and Accountmg Standards Update (“ ASU”).

(b) (1) of the Jumpqtart Our Busmeqs Startupq Act (“JOBS Act ) exempts emerging growth companies from being required to
comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities
Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a
company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non- emerging
growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt out of such extended
transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private
companies, the Company, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies
adopt the new or revised standard, until such time the Company is no longer considered to be an emerging growth company. At
times, the Company may elect to early adopt a new or revised standard. As such, the Company’ s financial statements may not
be comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates. Use of EstimatesThe---- Estimates The
preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U. S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities in the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. These estimates and assumptions are based on current facts, historical experience and various
other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the recording of expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ materially and adversely from these estimates. In the current macroeconomic and business environment
affected by the Russia- Ukraine and Israel- Hamas conflicts and inflationary pressures, these estimates require increased
judgment and carry a higher degree of variability and volatility. As events continue to evolve and additional information
becomes available, these estimates may change materially in future periods. Principles of €CenselidationThe---- Consolidation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly- owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. Further, the basis of
consolidation incorporates the financial statements of our foreign entity, Casing Technologies Group Limited, which
operates under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (" UK GAAP"). Those financial statements are translated
into U. S. GAAP for consolidation purposes. The translation process adheres to established accounting standards and
guidelines to ensure consistency and comparability across our consolidated financial statements. This approach enables
us to accurately reflect the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of our consolidated operations. Foreign
Currency Translations and Fransaetionsthe--- Transactions The Company has determined that the functional and reporting
currency for its operations across the globe is the functional currency of the Company’ s international subsidiaries. Accordingly,
all foreign balance sheet accounts have been translated into United States dollars using the rate of exchange at the respective
balance sheet date. Components of the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income have been translated at the
average rates for the year of the reporting period. Translation gains and losses are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
loss as a component of stockholders’ equity. Gains or losses arising from currency exchange rate fluctuations on transactions
denominated in a currency other than the local functional currency are included in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. For the sear-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the aggregate foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations on transactions included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive i income totaled applox1mately
$44.5 thousand and $ 0. 1 m11110n in losqes - : : ; g

ﬂﬁ-rl-l-teﬂ—m—g&ms— re%pectlvely 53-Concentration of Cledlt Risk The Company’ s customer concentration may impact its overall



credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that these entities may be similarly affected by changes in economic or other
conditions affecting the oil and gas industry. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company generated approximately
28 % of its revenue from 2 customers. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company generated approxnnately 39%
of its revenue from 3 y 0 y
ﬁs—reveﬁue—ffeﬁa—t—we—cu%tomerq Amounts due from these cu%tomerq 1ncluded in accounts recelvable at December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 and-2622- were approximately $ 6. 3 million and $ 11. | millienand-$-8-6-million, respectlvely. For the
year ended December 31, 2024, none of our vendors accounted for more than 10 % of total purchases. For the year ended
December 31 2023, the Company had #we-2 vendors that represented approxnnately 23 % of its totalveﬂder—pﬂfehases—l:er—t-he
y y purchases.
Amount% due to these Vendors 1ncluded in accounts payable at December 31,2023 and—292—2—were approx1mate1y $ 0. 3 million
and-$-0-9-millien;respeetively-. Financial instruments that potentlally qubject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash. The Company maintains accounts in federally insured financial institutions in excess of federally
insured limits. Management believes the Company is not exposed to significant credit risk due to the financial position of the
depository institutions in which these deposits are held and of the money market funds in which these investments are made.
Business Combinations The Company applies the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, which
requires us to make use of estimates and judgments to allocate the purchase price paid for acquisitions to the fair value of
the assets and liabilities acquired. We account for contingent assets and liabilities at fair value on the acquisition date,
and record changes to fair value associated with these assets and liabilities as a period cost as incurred. We use
established valuation techniques and engage reputable valuation specialists to assist us with these valuations. We use a
reasonable measurement period to record any adjustment related to the opening balance sheet (generally, less than one
year). These fair value measurements are considered level 3 fair value measurements. After the measurement period,
changes to the opening balance sheet can result in the recognition of income or expense as period costs. To the extent
these items stem from contingencies that existed at the balance sheet date, but are contingent upon the realization of
future events, the cost is charged to expense at the time the future event becomes known. Revenue ReeognittonThe---
Recognition The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Topic 842 (which addresses lease accounting) and Topic 606
(which addresses revenue from contracts with customers). The Company derives its revenue from two revenue types, tool rental
services and product sales. Tool Rental ServicesTool rental services consist of rental services, inspection services, and repair
services. Tool rental services are accounted for under Topic 842. Owned tool rentals represent the most significant revenue type
and are governed by the Company’ s standard rental contract. The Company accounts for such rentals as operating leases. The
lease terms are included in the contracts, and the determination of whether the Company’ s contracts contain leases generally
does not require significant assumptions or judgments. Owned tool rentals represent revenue from renting tools that the
Company owns. The Company does not generally provide an option for the lessee to purchase the rented equipment at the end
of the lease. The Company recognizes revenues from renting tools on a straight- line basis. The Company’ s rental contract
periods are daily, monthly, or per well. As part of this straight- line methodology, when the equipment is returned, the Company
recognizes as incremental revenue the excess, if any, between the amount the customer is contractually required to pay, which is
based on the rental contract period applicable to the actual number of days the drilling tool was out on rent, over the cumulative
amount of revenue recognized to date. In any given accounting period, the Company will have customers return the drilling tool
and be contractually required to pay the Company more than the cumulative amount of revenue recognized to date under the
straight- line methodology. Additionally, the Company has rental contracts that are based on usage, either on a per footage or per
well basis. As these types of rental contracts primarily consist of variable lease payments, which are unknown at
commencement, revenue is recognized when the changes in the factor on which the contingent lease payments are based occur.
When the customer returns the rental equipment and the footage or usage becomes known, the Company recognizes revenue.
The Company records the amounts billed to customers in excess of recognizable revenue as deferred revenue on its consolidated
balance sheet. 54-As noted above, the Company is unsure of when the customer will return rented drilling tools. As such, the
Company cannot provide a maturity analysis of future lease payments as it is unknown when the tool will be returned and what
the customer will owe upon return of the tool. The Company’ s drilling tools are generally rented for short periods of time
(significantly less than a year). Lessees do not provide residual value guarantees on rented equipment. The Company expects to
derive significant future benefits from its drilling tools following the end of the rental term. The Company’ s rentals are
generally short- term in nature, and its tools are typically rented for the majority of the time that the Company owns them.
Product Sales Product sales consist of charges for rented tools that are damaged beyond repair, charges for lost- in- hole, and
charges for lost- in- transit while in the care, custody or control of the Company’ s customers, drill bit manufacturing and
refurbishment, and other charges for made to order product sales as well . Product sales are accounted for under Topic 606.
Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferred to a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To determine revenue
recognition for its arrangements with customers, the Company performs the following five steps: (i) identify the contract (s)
with a customer; (i1) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation. The Company accounts for a contract when it has approval and commitment from both parties, the
rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance, and collectability of
consideration is probable. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the
customer and is the unit of account in the revenue standard. The transaction price is measured as consideration specified in a
contract with a customer and excludes any sales incentives and taxes or other amounts collected on behalf of third parties. As
each of the Company’ s contracts with customers contain a single performance obligation to provide a product sale, the




Company does not have any performance obligations requiring allocation of transaction prices. The performance obligation for
made to order product sales is satisfied and revenue is recognrzed ata pornt in time When control of the asset transfers to the
customer, which typically occurs upon dekv hernth A ustomer fer-piekap
-- pick up at—t-he—eempaﬂ-y—s—sh-tpp-mg—deele Addrtronally, pur%uant to the contractual terms Wrth the Company s customers,
the customer must notify the Company of, and purchase from the Company, any rented tools that are damaged beyond repair,
lost- in- hole, or lost- in- transit while in the care, custody or control of the Company’ s customers. Revenue is recognized for
these products at a point in time upon the customer’ s notification to the Company of the occurrence of one of these noted
events. The Company does not have any revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to remaining performance
obligations or contracts with variable consideration related to undelivered performance obligations. There was no revenue
recognized in the current period from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods. Revenue per geographic
locationRevenue generated was concentrated within the United States. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the revenue generated within the United States was $ 125. 3 million and $ 137. 2 million, respectively, or 81 % and 90 %
of total revenues. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the revenue generated outside the United States, in
Canada and International, was $ 29. 2 million and $ 14. 8 million, respectively, or 19 % and 10 % of total revenues.
Contract Assets and HiabilittesCentraet-Liabilities Contract assets represent the Company’ s rights to consideration for work
completed but not billed. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- the Company had contract assets of § 5. 4 —2-million
and $ 4. 8-2 million, respectively. Contract assets were recorded in accounts receivable, net in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The changes in contract assets for the year ended December 31, 2024 were as follows (in thousands):
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 4, 157 Revenue recognized from contract assets 55, 814 Conversion of contract assets
into accounts receivable (54, 522) Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 5, 449 Contract liabilities consist of fees invoiced or paid
by the Company’ s customers for which the associated services have not been performed and revenue has not been recognized
based on the Company’ s revenue recognition criteria described above. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, the
Company did not have any material contract liabilities. All deferred revenue were expected to be recognized during the
following 12 months, and they were recorded in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Cash and Cash Equivalents55—- Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company did not have any cash equivalents as of
December 31,2024 and 2023 and-2022-. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit fossesThe---- Losses The Company’ s
accounts receivable consists principally of uncollateralized amounts billed to customers. These receivables are generally due
within 30 to 60 days of the period in which the corresponding sales or rentals occur and do not bear interest. They are recorded
at net realizable value less an allowance for credit loqsei and are classified as account receivable, net on the conqolrdated
balance sheets. The Company adop A 6 aHnstraments ses;on hie

eﬂ—euffeﬁt—aﬂd—hisfeﬂeal—tn—fefmaﬁeﬁ—BfH—conqrderi both current conditions and reasonable and %upportable foreca%t% of future
conditions when evaluating expected credit losses for uncollectible receivable balances. In our determination of the allowance
for credit losses, we pool receivables by days outstanding and apply an expected credit loss percentage to each pool. The
expected credit loss percentage is determined using historical loss data adjusted for current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Current conditions considered include predefined aging criteria, as well as specified events that indicate
the balance due is not collectible. Reasonable and supportable forecasts used in determining the probability of future collection
consider publrcly avarlable macroeconomic data and whether future credit losses are expected to differ from hrqtorrcal losses.

changeq in the allowance for credrt loqsei for the year ended December 31, %92—3—2024 were as followq (1n thousandi)
Alewanee-foreredittosses-Balance at December 31, 26242023 $ (1, 2—2—2—458 ) Cumulative-effeetadjustments-upomradoptionof
A—S-U—Z*G—l—é——l—}-—Addrtronq durrng %92%2024 (3—36—439 ) Utrlrzatron of allowance for credit loqsei Balance at December 31,2022
2024 $ (1, 690 v e
458—) Inventories, net ﬂet-I-ﬂven’eeﬂes—~—— Inventorles are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable Value Cost is determrned by
using the specific identification method , weighted average, or the first- in- first- out ("' FIFO') method, depending on the
type of inventory . Inventory that is obsolete or in excess of forecasted usage is written down to its net realizable value based on
assumptions regarding future demand and market conditions. Inventory write- downs are charged to cost of rental revenue and
cost of product sale revenue within operating costs section of the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income and establish a new cost basis for the inventory. Inventory includes raw material and finished goods. Property, Plant and
Equipment56--- Equlpment Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Company are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is recorded using the straight- line method based on the estimated useful lives of the depreciable
property or, for leasehold improvements, the remaining term of the lease, whichever is shorter. Assets not yet placed in use are
not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment acquired as part of a business acquisition is recorded at acquisition date fair
value with subsequent additions at cost. The cost of refurbishments and renewals are capitalized when the value of the property,
plant or equipment is enhanced for an extended period. Expenditures to maintain and repair property, plant and equipment,
which do not improve or extend the life of the related assets, are charged to operations when incurred. When property, plant and
equipment is retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is included in operations. Impairment of Long- Lived AssetsEong—--- Assets Long - lived assets with
finite lives include property, plant and equipment and acquired intangible assets. The Company evaluates long- lived assets,




including acquired intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The recoverability of assets held and used is measured by comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset or an asset group to estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset or asset group. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds these estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the asset or asset group. For the
year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- management determined that there were no triggering events necessitating
impairment testing of property, plant, and equipment or intangible assets. FeasesFhe---- Leases The Company adopted ASC
842, Leases (“ ASC 842 ”) as of January 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective transition approach, with no restatement of
prior periods or cumulative adjustments to retained earnings. Upon adoption, the Company elected the package of transition
practical expedients, which allowed it to carry forward prior conclusions related to whether any expired or existing contracts are
or contain leases, the lease classification for any expired or existing leases and initial direct costs for existing leases. The
Company elected the use- of- hindsight to reassess lease term. The Company elected not to recognize leases with an initial term
of 12 months or less within the consolidated balance sheets and to recognize those lease payments on a straight- line basis in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income over the lease term. The new lease accounting standard also
provides practical expedients for an entity’ s ongoing accounting. The Company elected the practical expedient to not separate
lease and non- lease components for all leases. The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating
leases are included in operating lease right- of- use (““ ROU ) assets and current operating lease liabilities and operating lease
liabilities, net of current portion on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company recognizes lease expense for its operating
leases on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease. $+ROU assets represent the Company’ s right to use an underlying
asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company’ s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease.
ROU assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of the future
minimum lease payments over the lease term. Operating lease ROU assets also include the impact of any lease incentives. An
amendment to a lease is assessed to determine if it represents a lease modification or a separate contract. Lease modifications are
reassessed as of the effective date of the modification using an incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at
the commencement date. For modified leases the Company also reassess the lease classification as of the effective date of the
modification. The interest rate used to determine the present value of the future lease payments is the Company’ s incremental
borrowing rate because the interest rate implicit in the Company” s leases is not readily determinable. The incremental
borrowing rate is estimated to approximate the interest rate on a collateralized basis with similar terms and payments, and in
economic environments where the leased asset is located. The Company’ s lease terms include periods under options to extend
or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option in the measurement of its ROU
assets and liabilities. The Company considers contractual- based factors such as the nature and terms of the renewal or
termination, asset- based factors such as physical location of the asset and entity- based factors such as the importance of the
leased asset to the Company’ s operations to determine the lease term. The Company generally uses the base, noncancelable,
lease term when determining the ROU assets and lease liabilities. The right- of- use asset is tested for impairment in accordance
with ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. Lessor Accounting Our leased equipment primarily consists of rental
tools and equipment. Our agreements with our customers for rental equipment contain an operating lease component under ASC
842 because (i) there are identified assets, (ii) the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use and (iii) the customer directs the use of the identified assets
throughout the period of use. Our lease contract periods are daily, monthly, per well or based on footage. Lease revenue is
recognized on a straight- line basis based on these rates. We do not provide an option for the lessee to purchase the rented tools
at the end of the lease and the lessees do not provide residual value guarantees on the rented assets. We recognized operating
lease revenue within “ Tool rental ” on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Intangiblesintangible
Intangibles Intangible assets with finite useful lives include customer relationships, trade name, patents, non- compete
agreements and a supply agreement. These intangible assets are amortized either on a straight- line basis over the asset’ s
estimated useful life or on a basis that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible are realized. 58
Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets of acquired
businesses. We evaluate Goodwill at least annually for impairment. Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying
amount of the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. We conduct our annual assessment of the recoverability of
goodwill as of December 31 of each year. We first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is
necessary to perform the goodwill impairment test. If the qualitative assessment indicates that it is more likely than not
that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount or we elect not to perform a qualitative
assessment, the quantitative assessment of goodwill test is performed. The goodwill impairment test is also performed
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If it is necessary
to perform the quantitative assessment to determine if our goodwill is impaired, we will utilize a discounted cash flow
analysis using management’ s projections that are subject to various risks and uncertainties of revenues, expenses and
cash flows as well as assumptions regarding discount rates, terminal value and control premiums. Estimates of future
cash flows and fair value are highly subjective and inherently imprecise. These estimates can change materially from
period to period based on many factors. Accordingly, if conditions change in the future, we may record impairment
losses, which could be material to any particular reportlng period. [nvestment- Equity SeeuritiesEqtity—----- Securities
Equity securities are stated at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. The Company periodically reviews the securities for other than temporary declines in fair value below
cost and more frequently when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be



recoverable. For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 and-2622;-the Company believes-the-eost-ofthe-settled all
investments in equity securities was—reewer&ble—tn—all—matertal—respeets—for a realized loss of $ 12 thousand . Derivative
Financial InstramentsFrom—--- Instruments From time to time, the Company may enter into derivative instruments to manage
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. During 2016, the Company entered into an interest swap agreement with respect to
amounts outstanding under its revolving line of credit. The Company’ s interest rate swap is a pay- fixed, receive- variable
interest rate swap based on SOFR swap rate. The SOFR swap rate is observable at commonly quoted intervals for the full term
of the swap and therefore is considered a Level 2 item. For interest rate swaps in an asset position, the credit standing of the
counterparty is analyzed and factored into the fair value measurement of the asset. The impact of the Company’ s
creditworthiness has also been factored into the fair value measurement of the interest rate swap in a liability position. For the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, the application of valuation techniques applied to similar assets and
liabilities has been consistent. This arrangement was designed to manage exposure to interest rate fluctuations by effectively
exchanging existing obligations to pay interest based on floating rates for obligations to pay interest based on a fixed rate. These
derivatives are marked- to- market at the end of each quarter and the realrzed / unreahzed garn or loss is recorded as 1nterest

The 1nterest swap agreement was settled on July lO 2023 Upon settlement the swap had
a fair value of $ 0. 4 million. No new interest rate swaps were entered 1nto subsequently Feﬁ or durmg the year ended

Measurements Falr Value is the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or pa1d to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. There is a hierarchy based upon the transparency of inputs
used in the valuation of an asset or liability. Classification within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The valuation hierarchy contains three levels: Level 1 — Valuation inputs are
unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Level 2 — Valuation inputs are quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and other observable inputs directly or indirectly related to the assets or liabilities being measured. Level 3 — Valuation
inputs are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. The asset or liability” s fair value measurement level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. In
determining the appropriate levels, the Company performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that are measured and
reported on a fair value basis. At each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is based on
significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3. 59-The valuation of assets and liabilities recognized in business
combinations are considered level 3 fair value measurements on the closing date of the acquisition. These assets and
liabilities are not remeasured at each reporting period. Asset and liabilities measured at fair value are summarized as follows
(in thousands): Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Investments, equity securities $
—$— 8 —$ — Total assets at fair value $ — $ — $ — $ — Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2023 Level | Level 2
Level 3 Total Investments, equity securities $ $— $ — $ Total assets at fair Value $ $ — $ —3$ As Assets—at—Fa—l-r—Va-lue—as—of

2023 aﬁd—ZGQQ— the Cornpany did not

have any Level 2 or Level 3 assets or lrabrlrtres Fair Value of Frnancral -I-nstrunaeﬂts—"l:he»—— Instruments The Company’ s
financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable. The carrying amount of such
instruments approximates fair value due to their short- term nature. Additionally, the Company carries long- term debt at its
amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Redeemable Convertible Preferred SteekPrior-Stock Prior to the closing of
the Merger, there were outstanding shares of DTIH Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock (the" redeemable
convertible preferred stock™), which was classified outside of permanent equity in mezzanine equity on the consolidated balance
sheets as it was redeemable on a fixed date. Upon the closing of the Merger all of the redeemable convertible preferred stock
was canceled in exchange for DTIC Common Stock and the right to receive cash. Accordingly, there was no redeemable
convertrble preferred stock outstandrng as of December 31, 2023 Preferred Stock As of Deeember31+;2022the-earrying

0 p 0 ; 0 d As-of the closing of the
Merger the Board have expressly granted authorrty to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series, and to fix for each
such series such voting powers, full or limited, and such designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other
special rights and such qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or
resolutions adopted by the Board providing for the issue of such series and as may be permitted by the Delaware General
Corporation Law. The number of authorized shares of preferred stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number
of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of all of the then
outstanding shares of the capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as
a single class, without a separate vote of the holders of the preferred stock, or any series thereof, unless a vote of any such
holders is required pursuant to any preferred stock designation. The Board of the Company has not issued any shares of any
classes or series of preferred stock as of December 31, 2023-2024 , and through the date these financial statements were
available to be issued. Cost of ReventreThe---- Revenue The Company recorded all operating costs associated with its product
sales and tool rental revenue streams in cost of product sale revenue and cost of tool rental revenue, respectively, in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. All indirect operating costs, including labor, freight, contract
labor and others, are included in selling, general, and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. 68-Stock- Based Compensation The Company aeeeunts-recognizes stock- based compensation




expenses over the requisite service period. The Company historically granted stock- based compensation awards with
performance based vesting conditions. These options all vested upon the closing of the Merger with ROC. Subsequent to
the closing of the merger with ROC, the Company’ s stock- based compensation awards granted are subject to service
based and performance based vesting conditions. Pursuant to ASC 718- 10- 35- 8, the Company recognizes compensation
cost for stock awards —based-eompensation-in-aceordanee-with ASES718-only service conditions that have a graded vesting
schedule on a straight- line basis over the service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award
was , in- substance, multiple awards Compensation—Stoek-Compensatton{“ASCHE- ASC 718 requires that the cost of
awards of equity instruments offered in exchange for employee services, including employee stock options and restricted stock
awards, be measured based on the grant- date fair value of the award. The Company determines the fair value of stock options
granted using the Black- Scholes- Merton option- pricing model (“ Black- Scholes model ”’) and recognizes the cost over the
period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, generally the vesting period, w+th-net
of estimated forfeitures aceounted-. For restricted stock units, the grant date fair value is determined based on quoted

market price for as-they-oecur—Foranystoekoptionsgranted-priorto-the Company =' s common stock as of betngpubliely
traded-onJune24,2623;-the Company-estimated-grant date and the grant date fair value of its-eommon-stoek-the awards are

recognlzed as compensatlon cost ef—t-he—gfaﬁt—&a’ee—&ﬂd—used-t-hese—esfﬂﬁ&tes— mpufs—m’fe—t-he—B}aek—Se%xe{es—medel—"Phe—Beafé

-Sehe}es—meéel— Eamlng% Per -ShafeBas-te-Share Basw earnings per qhale is computed by d1V1d1ng the net income (10@%) by the
weighted- average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings is computed by adjusting net income
(loss) to reallocate undistributed earnings based on the potential impact of dilutive securities. Diluted earnings is computed by
dividing the diluted net income (loss) by the weighted- average number of common shares outstanding for the period, including
potential dilutive common stock. For the purposes of this calculation, outstanding stock options and redeemable convertible
preferred stock are considered potential dilutive common stock and are excluded from the computation of net loss per share if
their effect is anti- dilutive. The redeemable convertible preferred stock did not contractually entitle its holders to participate in
profits or losses. As such, it was not treated as a participating security in periods of net income or net loss. Income Faxeslreere
Taxes Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the consolidated financial statements and consist
of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred
income tax expense represents the change during the period in the deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company is subject to
state income taxes in various jurisdictions. The Company follows guidance issued by the FASB in accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes. This guidance clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition threshold an
income tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the consolidated financial statements and applies to all
income tax positions. Each income tax position is assessed using a two- step process. A determination is first made as to
whether it is more likely than not that the income tax position will be sustained, based upon technical merits and upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the income tax position is expected to meet the more likely than not criteria, 6+-the
benefit recorded in the consolidated financial statements equals the largest amount that is greater than 50 % likely to be realized
upon its ultimate settlement. The Company has no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. The
Company believes there are no tax positions taken or expected to be taken that would significantly increase or decrease
unrecognized tax benefits within twelve months of the reporting date. The Company records income tax related interest and
penalties, if applicable, as a component of the provision for income tax expense. However, there were no amounts recognized
relating to interest and penalties in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. Operating SegmentOperating-Segment Operating scgments are identified as
components of an enterprise about which discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating
decision- maker (“ CODM ”) in deciding resource allocation and assessing performance. The Company’ s Chief Executive
Officer works as the CODM. The Company’ s CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for the
purposes of making operations decisions, allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. Consequently, the
Company has determined it operates in one operating and reportable segment. Recent Accounting Pronouncements- Adoption
of Segment Reporting Standard In November 2023, FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (“ ASU ) 2023- 07,
Segment Reporting (Topic 280)- Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which includes requirements for
more robust disclosures of significant segment expenses and information used in assessing segment performance on an
annual and interim basis. The guidance also requires that a public entity that has a single reportable segment provide all
the disclosures required by the guidance and all existing segment disclosures under the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (“ ASC ) Topic 280, Segment Reporting. This standard is effective for the Company’ s annual period



beginning January 1, 2024 and interim periods beginning January 1, 2025 and should be applied retrospectively to all
comparative periods. Effective with this Report, the Company adopted this ASU. Refer to Note 18 (“ Segment
Informaton ) for the required segment disclosures. Recent Accounting Pronouncements- Accounting Standards Issued
Not Yet Effeetivelir- Effective In December 2023, FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (“ ASU ) 2023- 09, Income
Taxes (Topic 740)- Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires enhanced income tax disclosures that reflect how
operations and related tax risks, as well as how tax planning and operational opportunities, affect the tax rate and prospects for
future cash flows. This standard is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2025 with early adoption permitted. The
Company is evaluating the effects of adopting this new accounting guidance on its disclosures but does not currently expect
adoption will have a material impact on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements. The Company is currently
evaluating the effects of adopting this new accounting guidance. The Company does not intend to early adopt this ASU. In
November 2623-2024 , FASB issued ASU 2623-2024 - 6703 , Income Segment-— Statement - Reporting Comprehensive
Income (Fopie286)-- Expense Disaggregation Imprevements-toRepeortable-Segment-Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40) , which
neludesrequirements—--- requires disclosure of specific information about costs and expenses within relevant expense
captions on the face of the income statement, qualitative descriptions for mere-robust-diselosures-expense captions not
specifically disaggregated quantitatively, and the total amount and definltlon of selllng srg&rﬂeaﬂ-t—segfnen-t—c\pcnscs for
interim and annual reportlng periods mes p d . This standard is

effective for the Company’ s annual reporting pcnod bcgmnmc January 1, 2624-2027 and 1nlc11m reporting periods beginning
January 1, 2625-2028 swith-and should be applied retrospectively to all comparative periods. eatly-Early adoption is
permitted. The Company is sti-currently evaluating the effects of adopting this new accounting guidance en-tts-diselosures-.
N()TE 2- REVISI()NS OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TheBu-rrng—t-h&preparat—teﬂ—e-ﬂrts

prev 1ouslv 1ssucd December 31, 2023 audlted consolldated ﬁnanclal statements related to the presentation between cost of
tool rental revenue and cost of product sale revenue. Through management’ s review of clas51ﬁcat10n within the

(-k-)ss)— aﬂd-statemeﬂts—the Company 1dent1ﬁed that the cost of revenue
sharehe-}defs—equﬁ-y—lm the sale Fea h




Deeember3+2022-The-Company—cv aluaud fhe—these errors deserib it b both
uatitatively-and-quantitatively;-in accordance with -Seettﬂt—tes—a-ﬂd—E*ehaﬂgethmﬂaﬁﬁeﬂ—@%E( ﬁ—%la AuoummfY Bulletin
Number 99, Materiality (“ SAB 99 ) Fopte+—M-, Matertalitys-which is since codified in Accounting Standards
Codification 250, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (“ ASC 250 ;Aeeounting-Changes-"). The Company
performed a quantitative and Errer-Correetions;-qualitative assessment of the errors and eeneluded-determine that the
errors were-did not have a material impact to the-previously issued financial statements takenas-. Management noted that the
presentation errors identified resulted in a whete-net zero impact to total operating costs and expenses, income from
operations, or net income. Therefore, these immaterial errors have been corrected in the current period in accordance
with the guidance under SAB 99 and ASC 250 . The audited consolidated financial statements presented herein as-efand-for
the years— year ended December 31, 2023 ard-2622-have been revised to correct the errors described above in accordance with
SEC SAB Topic 1. M, as codified in ASC 250. Year ended December 31, 2023 (In thousands) As Previously Reported Total
Adjustment As Revised Cost of tool rental revenue $ 30, 960 $ (2, 690) $ 28, 270 Cost of product sale revenue 4, 559 2,
690 7, 249 NOTE 3- BUSINESS COMBINATIONSAcquisition of CTGOn the CTG Acquisition Date, the Company’ s
wholly owned subsidiary, Drilling Tools International, Inc., entered into and consummated the Share Purchase
Agreement with CTG, the shareholders of CTG, and a representative of CTG, to acquire 100 % of the shares of CTG for
a gross cash purchase consideration of £ 16. 2 million, or approximately $ 20. 9 million, based on the British pound
sterling to United States dollar exchange rate on the CTG Acquisition Date. CTG is incorporated in the United Kingdom
and is the holding company of its wholly owned subsidiary, Deep Casing. Deep Casing specializes in the design,
engineering, and manufacturing of a range of patented and innovative products for well construction, well completion,
and casing installation processes for the global oil and gas sector. The CTG Acquisition allows the Company to further
expand its geographical presence globally, especially in the Middle East, provides accretive earnings to consolidated
results of operations, and expands the Company’ s portfolio of intellectual property rights, through the acquisition of
over 60 patents. The £ 16. 2 million, or approximately $ 20. 9 million, gross cash purchase consideration was used on the
CTG Acquisition Date to (i) settle Deep Casing’ s outstanding debt of £ 15. 3 million, or approximately $ 19. 8 million;
(ii) pay Deep Casing’ s legacy shareholders £ 0. 3 million, or approximately $ 0. 3 million, in accordance with the Share
Purchase Agreement; and (iii) pay Deep Casing’ s acquisition- related costs of £ 0. 6 million, or approximately $ 0. 8
million. The CTG Acquisition has been accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805, Business
Combinations (“ ASC 805 ”). Drilling Tools International, Inc. has been treated as the accounting acquirer. Accordingly,
CTG’ s tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and its liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated
fair values on the CTG Acquisition Date. The preliminary allocation of the purchase is as follows: Assets Preliminary
March 15, 2024 Measurement Period Adjustments As adjusted March 15, 2024 Cash $ 2,674 $ — $ 2, 674 Accounts
receivable, net 3, 781 — 3, 781 Inventories, net 4, 282 — 4, 282 Prepaid expenses and other current assets — Property,
plant and equipment, net 1, 647 — 1, 647 Operating lease ROU asset — Intangible assets, net 8, 065 — 8, 065 Goodwill 2,
618 3, 144 Total assets acquired $ 23, 571 $ $ 24, 097 Liabilities Accounts payable 2, 656 — 2, 656 Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities (295) Current portion of operating lease liabilities — Operating lease liabilities, less current
portion — Total liabilities assumed $ 2, 636 $ $ 3, 162 Total consideration transferred $ 20, 935 $ — $ 20, 935 The excess
of the purchase price over the fair values of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired has been assigned
to goodwill. Goodwill represents the future benefits as a result of the acquisition that will enhance the services available
to both new and existing customers and increase the Company’ s competitive position. Goodwill will be evaluated for
impairment at least annually. Goodwill attributable to the CTG Acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes. During
the three months ended June 30, 2024, a measurement period adjustment was identified as it relates to assumed accrued
liabilities. The total measurement period adjustment was $ 0. 5 million. The measurement period adjustment impacted
the goodwill recognized on March 15, 2024. As of December 31, 2024, the Company is substantially complete with the
process of allocating the purchase price and valuing the acquired assets and liabilities assumed. The following table sets
forth the amounts allocated to the identified intangible assets, the estimated useful lives of those intangible assets as of the
CTG Acquisition Date, and the methodologies used to determine the fair values of those intangible assets ($ in
thousands): Fair value Useful life (in years) Fair value methodologyIntangible assets Trade names $ Relief from royalty



methodDeveloped Technology 3, 269 Relief from royalty methodCustomer relationships 3, 977 Multi- period excess
earnings method of the income approachTotal intangible assets $ 8, 065 The intangible assets acquired are expected to be
amortized over their useful lives on a straight- line basis. The Company incurred acquisition- related costs of $ 1. 6
million during the year ended December 31, 2024, which are included in other income (expense), net in the consolidated
statement of income and comprehensive income. The Company’ s consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income for the year ended December 31, 2024 include CTG’ s revenues of $ 10. 2 million and net income of $ 1. 1 million.
Supplemental Pro Forma Information (unaudited) The unaudited supplemental pro forma financial results below for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, combine the consolidated results of the Company and CTG, giving effect to
the CTG Acquisition as if it had been completed on January 1, 2023. This unaudited supplemental pro forma financial
information is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of future operations or results had the
acquisition been completed as of January 1, 2023, or any other date. Year ended December 31, (in thousands) Pro forma
revenue $ 157, 824 $ 169, 788 Pro forma net income $ 2, 261 $ 17, 488 The unaudited supplemental pro forma financial
information in the table above contains material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments to remove interest expense on
CTG' s debt as it is assumed that the business combination occurred and the debt was paid off on January 1, 2023.
Acquisition of Superior Drilling Products, Inc. On March 6, 2024, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement by
and among the Company, SDPI, Merger Sub, Merger Sub 11, pursuant to the First Merger, with SDPI surviving as a
wholly owned subsidiary of DTI and upon the effective time of the First Merger, SDPI, as the surviving corporation of
the First Merger, merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. In accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement, the closing of the Merger occurred on July 31, 2024
(the “ SDPI Closing Date ” or “ SDPI Closing ) for total consideration of $ 47. 9 million. The consideration for the
Merger of $ 47. 9 million is comprised of the following items (in thousands): Cash paid to holders of SDPI Common
Stock (1) $ 13, 668 Cash payment of SDPI transaction costs 2, 907 Cash repayment of SDPI debt 2, 278 Cash payment to
holders of SDPI Restricted Stock 1, 806 Cash severance payment to former SDPI employee (2) Fair value of DTI
Common Stock issued in exchange for outstanding SDPI Common Stock (3) 27, 714 Fair value of replacement awards
issued to holders of SDPI Options Effective settlement of preexisting relationship between DTI and SDPI (4) (828) Fair
value of consideration transferred $ 47, 916 (1) Represents cash consideration paid to holders of SDPI common stock,
which consisted of (i) payment of $ 0. 4 million to holders of SDPI common stock who elected to receive cash election
consideration of § 1. 00 per share of SDPI common stock held pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement; (ii)
payment of $ 4. 3 million to SDPI stockholders who did not make an election to receive either cash election consideration
or stock election consideration and, therefore, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, automatically received
the cash election consideration of $ 1. 00 per share of SDPI common stock held; and (iii) payment of $ 9. 0 million to
holders of SDPI common stock whereby the stock election shares exceeded the maximum share amount, as described in
the Merger Agreement, which triggered the proration provision described in the Merger Agreement. (2) Represents a
severance payment made in accordance with the terms of an employment agreement between SDPI and an employee
that was entered into prior to contemplation of the Merger Agreement. The agreement contained a provision whereby a
change in control event would trigger a severance payment, and it was determined that the closing of the Merger
triggered the requirement for such a payment to be made. Upon the SDPI Closing, DTI paid the severance payment on
SDPP’ s behalf. (3) Represents the fair value of the shares of DTI common stock issued to holders of SDPI common stock
as consideration for the Merger. Holders of SDPI common stock received 4, 845, 132 shares of DTI' s common stock with
an aggregate fair value of $ 27. 7 million, which was calculated using the quoted market price of DTI common stock of $
5. 72 per share on the SDPI Closing Date. (4) Represents the effective settlement of DTI’ s accounts payable to SDPI as
DTI was a customer of SDPI' s prior to the SDPI Closing. The Company previously held an equity interest in SDPI that
was acquired and held prior to the SDPI Closing Date. The Company’ s previously held interest was remeasured to its
fair value of $ 1. 2 million based on the market price of SDPI’ s common stock on the SDPI Closing Date. This
remeasurement resulted in a $ 0. 4 million gain included in the Company’ s consolidated statement of income and
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2024 The fair value of DTI’ s previously held equity interest in
SDPI was included in the measurement of goodwill on the SDPI Closing Date. SDPI is an innovative drilling and
completion tool technology company providing cost saving solutions that drive production efficiencies for the oil and
natural gas drilling industry. In addition, SDPI is a manufacturer and refurbisher of polycrystalline diamond compact
drill bits for leading oil field services companies. The acquisition furthers the Company' s growth strategy as a premier
provider of technologically differentiated solutions and services for the global oil & gas drilling industry. The SDPI
acquisition allows the company to vertically integrate around our proven and successful Drill- N- Ream ® tool, gain
global rights to run this tool, continue the Vernal, UT bit repair business supporting major OEMs of PDC drill bits, and
leverage their high- spec machine shop. In addition, we acquired over 30 patents and patents pending, the majority of
which have been granted. The acquisition of SDPI has been accounted for as a business combination in accordance with
ASC 805, Business Combinations. The Company has been treated as the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, SDPI' s
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and its liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair
values on the SDPI Closing Date. The purchase price allocation for the Merger is preliminary and subject to revision,
primarily relating to information pertaining to inventory. Additional information that existed as of the SDPI Closing
Date may become known during the remainder of the measurement period, which will not extend beyond one year from
the SDPI Closing Date. The preliminary allocation of the purchase is as follows (in thousands): Assets acquired: Cash $
1, 726 Accounts receivable, net 1, 239 Related party note receivable, current 1, 231 Inventories, net 2, 800 Prepaid
expenses and other current assets Property, plant and equipment, net 10, 213 Related party note receivable, noncurrent



4, 193 Operating lease right- of- use asset 2, 662 Intangible assets, net 22, 850 Deposits and other long- term assets Total
assets acquired 47, 687 Liabilities assumed: Accounts payable Current portion of operating lease liabilities Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities 1, 804 Deferred tax liabilities, net Deferred income Operating lease liabilities, less
current portion 2, 368 Total liabilities assumed 6, 245 Total identifiable net assets 41, 442 Goodwill 7, 718 Total net assets
acquired and goodwill $ 49, 160 The following table presents a preliminary reconciliation of the fair value of consideration
transferred and the fair value of DTI’ s investment in SDPI that was acquired and held prior to Closing which is
included in the calculation of goodwill (in thousands) the-effeets-of the-eorreetions-of the-etrors-desertbed-above-: For-Fair
value of consideration transferred $ 47, 916 Fair value of DTI' s investment in SDPI that was acquired and held prior to
Closing 1, 244 Total fair value consideration transferred and fair value of DTT' s investment in SDPI that was acquired
and held prior to Closing $ 49, 160 The excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred and the fair value of DTI’
s previously held investment in SDPI over the fair values of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired
has been assigned to goodwill. Goodwill represents the future benefits as a result of the acquisition that will enhance the
services available to both new and existing customers and increase the Company’ s competitive position. Goodwill will be
evaluated for impairment at least annually. Goodwill attributable to the acquisition of SDPI is not deductible for tax
purposes. The following table sets forth the amounts allocated to the identified intangible assets, the estimated useful
lives of those intangible assets as of the SDPI Closing Date, and the methodologies used to determine the fair values of
those intangible assets ($ in thousands): Fair value Useful life (in years) Fair value methodology Customer relationships
$ 13, 400 Multi- period Excess Earnings MethodDeveloped technology 8, 600 Relief- From- Royalty MethodTrade names
Relief- From- Royalty MethodBacklog 0. 4 Multi- period Excess Earnings MethodTotal intangible assets $ 22, 850 The
intangible assets acquired are expected to be amortized over their useful lives on a straight- line basis. The Company
1ncurred acqulsmon- related costs of $ 3 4 mllllon durlng lhu year ended December 31, 2022-2024 Conselidated-Statement

whlch are 4-689—$—7—99—'F$—4—1—39

expense eﬂ—, net in the consohdated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company s LOll\OllddlL([
statements of income and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2024 include SDPI' s revenues of $ 5. 0
million and net loss of $ 1. 4 million. Supplemental Pro Forma Information (unaudited) The unaudited supplemental pro
forma financial results below for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 , combine the consolidated results of the
Company and SDPI, giving effect to the Merger as if it had been completed on January 1, 2023 . The unaudited
supplemental pro forma financial results to not give effect to the impact of the CTG or EDP Acquisition. This unaudited
supplemental pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of
future operations or results had the acquisition been completed as of January 1, 2023, or any other date. Year ended
December 31, (in thousands) Pro forma revenue $ 159, 992 $ 162, 509 Pro forma net income $ (5, 336) $ 10, 752 The
unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information in the table above contains material nonrecurring pro forma
adjustments to (i) record acquisition- related costs incurred by the Company prior to the SDPI Closing Date in the
amount of $ 0. 6 million and (ii) to record stock compensation expense of $ 0. S million for SDPI options that vested upon



the closing of the acquisition of SDPI. Acquisition of European Drilling Projects B. V. On September 30, 2024, the
Company’ s wholly owned subsidiary, Drilling Tools International, Inc., entered the Share Purchase Agreement with
European Drilling Projects B. V. (“ EDP ”), and the sole shareholder of EDP, to acquire 100 % of the shares of BHH
eommenrstoek-issued-were-exchanged- EDP. European Drilling Products is a global provider of next- generation
stabilizers, specialty reamers, and wellbore optimization technology for 337,429-shares-the drilling industry. EDP
designs and manufactures bespoke drilling equipment tailored to address specific industry challenges. The integration of
EDP' S expertlse aligns seamlessly with -BT—I-G DTI' s mternatlonal growth strategy and commitment to technological

m date € vergertraccordance with the CommenExehange Ratior
terms of the Merger Agreement the clos1ng of the acqu1s1t10n occurred on October 3, 2024 (the “ EDP Closing Date ” or
“EDP Closmg ”) for total consnderatlon of $13.9 mllhon Thc consideration for the acquisition of $ 2-13 . 3-9 million is
comprised of stee ecorded-by-taking-the following items (in thousands): Cash paid to EDP' s
sole shareholder $ 6 —95—queted—market—pﬁee— 307 Note payable issued by DTI to EDP’ s sole shareholder (1) 5,207 Cash
repayment of the-CompanyEDP debt 1, 889 Cash paid to settle employee stock appreciation right awards (2) Effective
settlement of preexisting relationship between DTI and EDP (3) Fair value of consideration transferred $ 13, 900 (1)
Represents promissory note issued to EDP ' s eommon-sole shareholder by DTI in lieu of cash paid at closing. (2)
Represents the employee stock appreciation rights that vest immediately upon a change in control event per the original
award terms. DTI paid cash to settle the vested awards at the EDP Clos1ng Date (3) Represents the effectlve settlement
of DTI’ s accounts recelvable from EDP as EDP was of-the-date-s o Sow 2

e%R@%Speﬂser Thc acqu1s1tlon proeeedsreeetved-by-the-Compan m-th et-of EDP has
been trﬁﬁaetmfreests%etaled%%é—mﬂhefl—?he—h{efgeﬁmauoumcd orasa fevefse—ree&p-rta-h-z&ﬁeﬁ—busmess
combination in accordance with ASC 805 H—S—GAAPUnder-this-method-ofaceounting-, ROC-was-Business Combinations

(“ ASC 805 ”). Drilling Tools International, Inc. has been treated as the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, EDP’ s tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired eompany-, and its liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair
values on the EDP Closing Date. The purchase price allocation for finanetal-reporting-purposes-the Merger is preliminary
and subject to revision. Additional information that existed as of the EDP Closing Date may become known during the
remainder of the measurement period, which will not extend beyond one year from the EDP Closing Date. The
preliminary allocation of the purchase is as follows ( seeNote-in thousands): Assets acquired: Cash $ Accounts
receivable, net |, Stmmary-180 Accrued Revenue Other current assets Property, plant and equipment, net 3, 176
0perat1ng lease rlght- of Stgnifieant- use asset Intanglble assets, net 8 197 Total assets acqulred 14, 153 Liabilities

ottete S—Areeo g he-Other Merger

e any-issuingsharesfor-the current hablhtles Debt noncurrent 0perat1ng lease

hablhtles, less current portlon Deferred tax hablhtles, net Total liabilities assumed 1, 769 Total identifiable net assets 12
of ROC-, accompanted-by-areeapitalization—he-384 Goodwill 1, 516 Total net assets acquired and ef ROCwere-stated-at
histerteateost-with-no-goodwill er-$ 13, 900 The excess of other—- the fair value of the consideration transferred over the
fair values of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets reeerded-acquired has been assigned to goodwill. Goodwill
represents the future benefits of acquiring EDP as the acquisition not only enhances DTI' s competitive edge, but also
reinforces its position as a leader in providing innovative drilling solutions to the global oil and gas industry. Goodwill
will be evaluated for impairment at least annually. Goodwill attributable to the acquisition of EDP is not deductible for
tax purposes . The following table presents-sets forth the amounts allocated to the identified intangible assets, the
estimated useful lives of the-those intangible assets as of total DT C-Commen-Stoekoutstanding-immediately-after-thc EDP
elostng-Closing Date, and the methodolognes used to determme the fair values of t-he—those Mefger—mtanglble assets (1n
thousands) : g ere i

621+-Subtotal—Mergernetof redemptions 5 7H5-721 Tr ade names Total 1ntang1ble assets $ 8 lssuaﬂee-ef—BHGGemmeﬁ
Stoek-in-eonneetion-with- PIPEFinanetng2-, 970,296 Exehange-197 The intangible assets acquired are expected to be



amortized over their useful lives on a straight- line basis. The Company incurred acquisition- related costs of BTHH
eommonstock-outstanding-as-of$ 1. 0 million during year ended December 31, 2622-2024 , which is included in other
expense, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company’ s consolidated
statements of income and comprehenswe income for the year ended

pding-as-of-December 31, %(-)2—2—2024 include EDP’ s revenues -feﬁBHG

EDP

Clos1ng Date to December 31 202

SECURITIESThe followmg table qhowe the cost and fair value of the Company’ s investments in equlty securities (in
thousands): Cost UnrealizedGain Fair Value December 31,2024 § — $ — $ — Cost UnrealizedLoss Fair Value December
31,2023 $§ (111) $ CostUnrealizedGain—--- Unrealized FairValte-holding gains on equity securities for the year ended
December 31, 20222024 were $ $$+343-0. 4 million where Hﬁfea-l-lzed-unreallzed holdlng losses on equity securities for

the year ended December 31, 2023 were $ 0. 3 million wh g . On July 31, 2024,
the Company elected cash for the ye&%ended—BeeembeH—l—Z—@%—Z—wefe-shares owned in SDPI The Company received $ 6-1
. 2 million in cash and recognized a realized loss of $ 12 thousand. Refer to Note 3- Business Combinations for more
information . NOTE 5 — BALANCE SHEET DETAILS- CURRENT ASSETS AND CURRENT LIABILITIES Inventories,
netThe following table shows the components of inventory (in thousands): December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2622-2023
Raw materials $ 12,928 $ 5, 022 $3-Work in progress 1 , 377828 — Finished goods 2, 897 Total inventories 17, 653 5, 038
3-492-Allowance for obsolete inventory ( 151) (4) €+-Inventories, net $ 17, 502 $ 5, 034 3;28+Prepaid expenses and other
current assetsThe following table shows the components of prepaid expenses and other current assets (in thousands): December
31,2623-2024 December 31, 2822-2023 Prepaid expenses: EREbenefitsreeetvable $—$2,HF Deposits on inventory $ $ 2,
146 Prepaid income tax —1, 293 Prepaid insurance 1, 110 Prepaid rent Prepaid equipment Prepaid other Other current assets:
Other nterestrateswap-asset$—— $Other Total § 43 , 553-874 $ 4, 384553 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities The
following table shows the components of accrued expenses and other current liabilities (in thousands): December 31, 2623-2024
December 31, 20222023 Accrued expenses: Accrued compensation and related benefits $ 4, 497 $ 4, 999 $3;:392-Accrued
insurance Accrued transaction advisory fees — 1, 000 —Accrued professional services Accrued interest Accrued property taxes
Accrued monitoring fee Other Other current liabilities: Income tax payable $-1, 586 $4;-786-Sales tax payable Unbilled lost- in-
hole revenue Deferred revenue 1, 042 Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 7, 863 $ 10, 579 $#299-NOTE 6 —
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NETThe following table shows the component of property, plant and equipment,
net (in thousands): Estimated Useful Lives (in Years) December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Rental tools and
equipment 5- 10 $ 205, 939 $ 188, 949 +68;-973-Buildings and improvements 5- 40 7, 074 6, 672 5;-78+Office furniture,
fixtures and equipment 3- 5 2, 507 2, 389 2;+8+Transportation and equipment 3- 5 Total property, plant and equipment 216,
234 198, 803 +69-682-Less: accumulated depreciation ( 142, 203) (133, 003 3H25;753F) Property, plant and equipment, net
(excluding construction in progress) 74, 031 65, 800 44;+45-Construction in progress 1, 540 — Property, plant and equipment,
net $ 75,571 $ 65, 800 $44,454-Total depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-was
approximately $ 21. 5 million and $ 20. 3 mitherand-$39-—Fmillion, respectively. The Company has not acquired any
property, plant and equipment under capital leases. Property, plant and equipment, net, were concentrated within the United
States. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and-2622-, property, plant and equipment, net held within the United
States was $ 66. 9 million and $ 63. 0 million and-$-4--8millien, respectively, or 89 % and 96 % and95-%of total property,
plant and equipment, net, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and2622- property, plant and
equipment, net held outside of the United States 4a-Canada;-was $ 8. 6 million and $ 2. 8 million ard-$23-mithen, or 11 %
and 4 %and-5-% of total property, plant and equipment net for both periods. NOTE 7- INTANGIBLES, NET The following
table shows the components of intangible assets, net (in thousands): Useful Lives (in Years) December 31, 2623-2024
December 31, 20222023 Trade name 10-43-15$ 3,184 $ 1, 280 Developed $35280-Tcchnology 13- 20 15, 438 — Customer
Relationships 15- 20 21, 081 — Patents 5- 20 Total intangible assets +39 , 556-714 1, 550 Less: accumulated amortization ( 2,
482) (1, 334 ¥5287) Intangible assets, net $ 37, 232 § Total amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 and-2622-was approximately $ 1. 2 million and $ 47 . 1 thousand and-$-8—mitttenrespectively. NOTE 8 -
GOODWILL The change in carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2024 was as follows (in
thousands): Total Net balance as of December 31, 2023 $ — Additions due to business combinations 12, 378 Impairments
— Foreign currency translation (231) Total $ 12, 147 NOTE 9 - LEASESThe Company leases various facilities and vehicles
under noncancelable operating lease agreements. The remaining lease terms for our leases range from 1 month to 14 years.
These leases often include options to extend the term of the lease, which may be for periods of up to 5 years. When it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised, the impact of the renewal term is included in the lease term for purposes of
determining total future lease payments and measuring the ROU asset and lease liability. We apply the short- term lease policy
election, which allows us to exclude from recognition leases with an original term of 12 months or less. We have not entered
into any finance leases as of December 31, 2623-2024 . For the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and
2622-, the components of the Company’ s lease expense were as follows (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, 2623-2024
Year Ended December 31, 2022-2023 Operating Lease Cost $ 6, 494 $ 6, 077 $-5;722-Short- term Lease Cost Variable Lease
Cost Sublease Income — (76 3383-) Total Lease Cost $ 6-7 , 451012 $ 6, 880+-451 Supplemental balance sheet information
related to leases was as follows (in thousands): Year Ended Year Ended December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2622-2023




Weléhted average remdmlné lease term (1n years) 7.116.55 -7’%—3—We15hted avi eraée dlscount rate 7 57 % 5. 80 %5—34%

-1-1ab1-11&eséé—3—8§—993—1?uture undlscounted cash ﬂOV\ S f01 each of the next fne years and thereafter and reconcmanon to the
lease liabilities recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023-2024 were as follows (in thousands): $ 4
5,9234-788 5 , 689-113 3,522-781 3, 094 2, 538 4391,939-Thereafter 59 , 685490 Total lease payments $ 22-29 , 547804
Less: imputed interest (3-6 , 666-918 ) Present value of lease liabilities $ +8-22 , 85+886 The Company leases downhole drilling
tools to companies in the oil and natural gas industry. Such leases are accounted for in accordance with ASC 842. For the year
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, tool rental revenue was approximately $ 117. 9 million and $ 119. 2 mithen
and-$99--0-million, respectively. Our lease contract periods are short- term in nature and are typically daily, monthly, per well,
or footage based. Puete-As it is unknown when the customers will return our tools short—termnature-ofthe-eentraets—, no
maturity table is presented. NOTE 9-10 - DEBTIn REVOEHNG-CREDHFACHAT -December 2015, the Company
entered into a credit facility with PNC Bank, National Association (the" Existing Credit Facility"). The facility prevides
provided for a revolving line of credit with a maximum borrowing amount totaling $ 60. 0 million ;as-efDeeember-34;2023
and-2022-. On June20-March 15 | 2623-2024 , the Company entered-refinanced its revolving credit facility (the
Reﬁnanclng ”) by enterlng mto t-he—a Second Amended and Restdted Revolwng ( 1ed1t Term Loan and Secunty and

( 1ed1t Fac111ty Agreen&eﬂt— )t-h&t—med-rﬁed—wnh certaln of the

Company S subsndlarles and PNC Bank, Natlonal Association as lender and as agent Pursuant to the terms of #s

26-80 . 0 million un eapita emoved-and a single draw term loan ( the " Term Loan") in a
principal amount of § 9-25 . 0 mllhon snb-l-nﬂt—te- The hne of credit and the Term Loan mature in March 2029. The
Credit Facility amends and restates the Company -’ s Canadian-entity-Existing Credit Facility under that certain
Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan, and Security Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2023, by and among
the Company, certain of its sub51d1ar1es, and PNC Bank National Assoclatlon Addltlonally, we are requlred to make ane
- an annual payment : debte v d rof up to $ 5,
000, 000, to be determined based on the MergethefExcess Cash Flows generated each ﬁscal year commenclng with the
year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as defined in the Credit Facility. We expect to make our first payment in April 2025,
and accordingly have recorded that amount within current maturities of long- term debt at December 31, 2024. For the
year ended December 31, 2024 , the interest on the amount drawn was-on the Credit Facility and the outstanding Term
Loan balance are based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("' SOFR ") or the bank’ s base lending rate plus
applicable margin (approximately 9. 25 % and 8. 4-55 % , respectively, at December 31, 2623-2024 ). The Credit Facility is
collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company and-matares-. As of December 31, 2625-2024 , the Company has
drawn $ 27. 1 million against the line of credit . As of December 31, 2623-2024 , there—- the term loan has a balance were
neo-amounts-drawn-againstthe-ine-of eredit$ 21. 7 million . The Company is subject to various restrictive covenants associated
with these borrowings including, but not limited to, a fixed charge ratio, and a minimum amount of undrawn availability. As of
December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company was in compliance with all restrictive covenants. In connection with acquisition of
EDP, the Company issued an unsecured promissory note to the former parent company of EDP, totaling $ 5. 2 million.
The note bears an interest rate of 8 % per annum. The note matures in December 2029 and payments are made
quarterly. Please refer to Note 3, Business Combinations, for more information surrounding the issuance of the
unsecured promissory note. As of December 31, 2024, the future maturities of long- term debt consisted of the following
(in thousands): $ 6, 995 5, 975 6, 056 6, 143 28, 644 Total long term debt $ 53, 813 Contingent Interest Embedded Derivative
LiabilityUnder the Credit Facility Agreement, the interest rate will reset (the' Default Rate') upon the event of a default and an
additional 2 % will be added to the base rate. The Company analyzed the Default Rate feature of the Credit Facility for
derivative accounting consideration under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and determined the Default Rate met the
definition of a derivative as it is a contingent interest feature. The Company also noted that the Default Rate feature (the' Default
Rate Derivative') required bifurcation from the host contract and was to be accounted for at fair value. In accordance with ASC
815- 15, the Company bifurcated the Default Rate feature of the note and determined the derivative is liability classified. The
Default Rate Derivative is treated as a liability, initially measured at fair value with subsequent changes in fair value recorded in
earnings. Management has assessed the probability of occurrence for a non- credit default event and determined the likelihood of
a referenced event to be remote. Therefore, the estimated fair value of the Default Rate Derivative was negligible as of
December 31,2024 and 2023 aﬂd%@%%—dnd therefore, no amounts were recmded as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022

INCOME TAXESFor the years ended Decembe1 31, 2024 and 2022 —&nd—292—2— income from contlnums_ operatlons before
taxes consisted of amounts related to U. S. operations and income associated with the Company’ s foreign operations
predominantly-in-Canada-. The geographical breakdown of the Company’ s income before provision for income taxes was as
follows (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, Domestic $ 1,274 $ 17, 351 352-$49-0694-International 1, 710 2, 443 442-5;



683-Profits before provision for income taxes $ 2,984 $ 19, 794 $24; 777 Income tax expense attributable to income from
continuing operations consists of (in thousands): Year Ended December 31, Current provision for income taxes: Federal §$ 1,
271 $ Foreign ( 1, 444-107) State Total current 1, 603 2-648-Deferred tax expense (benefit): Federal (1, 078) 3, 826 Foreign
State (180) (417) Total deferred tax expense: (778) 3, 443 +-880-Total provision for income taxes $ (30) $ 5, 046 $3;698-Tax
rate reconciliation The following table presents a reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the Company’ s effective tax rate:
Year Ended December 31, U. S. federal tax benefit at statutory rate 21. 0 % 21. 0 % State taxes, net of federal benefit 12. 7 % 1.
9 9%2—+" Permanent differences 22. 7 % 3. 6 % Permanent differences related to foreign items- 5. 8 % 0. 0 % Transfer
pricing 1. 2 % 0 . 0 % Foreign rate differential 6-1 . 2-4 % 0. 5-0 % Foreign taxes- 10. 4 % 0. 2 % Valuation allowance - 0. 3
% 0.0 % Credits - 212 . 1 % 0. 0 % Income taxes deferred adjustment 27. 0 % 0. 0 % Income taxes payable adjustment-

58.8 % 0. O%Otherﬂ 4% - 1. 2%-—9—9—%Effeet1vetaxrate 1. 0%25 S%H%%—'Phe-effeet-rv&taaﬁaf&tmpaet—eﬁet-her

wefe—tndiﬁdua-l—lryhtﬁnﬁaterm-l—&gmﬁeant Componentq of deferred taxes The tax effecti of temporary drfferencei and
carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022-are presented below (in thousands): #4-Year Ended December 31, Deferred tax assets Net operating loss
carryforward $ 3, 488 $ 1, 544 $3;378-Allowance for doubtful accounts Share- based compensation 1, 800 1, 451 Bonus
accrual Inventory Intangible assets 1, 815 1, 129 +-Federal credits 3 , +52-252 — Other 2, 681 — Gross deferred tax assets 13,
647 5, 028 6;587Valuation allowance —(3, 019) — Net deferred tax assets 10, 628 5, 028 6;-58F-Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation on property, plant, and equipment ( 10, 902) ( 11, 391 3H8;958-) Withholding tax on unremitted earnings ( 431) (

264) €2y-Other (5, 221) — 42 -Deferred tax liabilities ( 16, 554) (11, 655 H95772) Net deferred liabilities $ ( 5, 926) $ (6,
627 ¥$3;485-) At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforward of
approximately nil and $ 4 —l—m-rl-l-ten—aﬁd—&;—lé— 1 million, respectively, which may be carried forward indefinitely and state and
local net operating loss carryforward of approximately $ 7. 0 million and $ 8 —8-milienand-$9- 8 million, respectively, which
expire at various dates. The utilization of the Company’ s net operating losses may be subject to a limitation due to the “ change
in ownership provisions ~” under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state and foreign provisions. Such
limitations may result in the expiration of the net operating loss carryforwards before their utilization. The Company is subject
to income taxes in the U. S. federal jurisdiction, various state jurisdictions as well as Canada. Tax regulations within each
jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The
Company’ s tax years remain open for examination by all tax authorities since inception and carryover attributes remain open to
adjustment by the U. S. and state authorities. NOTE 12 — STOCK- BASED COMPENSAHONOr-COMPENSATIONStock
OptionsOn June 20, 2023, the Company adopted the Drilling Tools International Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan
(the" 2023 Plan"). The 2023 Plan became effective on the closing of the Merger ;- which-alse-eeeurred-ontune26;2623- The
2023 Plan provides for the issuance of shares of Common Stock up to ten percent (10 %) of the shares of outstanding Common
Stock as of the closing of the Merger {whieh-equates-to-0-shares-as-of Beeember3+;2023)-and automatically increases on the
first trading day of each calendar year by the number of shares of Common Stock equal to three percent (3 %) of the total
number of outstanding Common Stock on the last day of the prior calendar year. The 2023 Plan allows for awards to be issued
to employees, non- employee directors, and consultants in the form of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares,
restricted stock units, performance based awards, other share- based awards, other cash- based awards, or a combination of the
foregoing. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , there were 2-1 , 996-056 , 854-536 sharcs of Common Stock available for issuance
under the 2023 Plan. In connection with the Merger, all outstanding options to purchase shares of DTTH common stock were
canceled and exchanged for options to purchase shares of DTIC Common Stock (" Company Options"). The number of
Company Options issued and the associated exercise prices were adjusted using the Common Exchange Ratio used for the
Merger (see Note 3, Merger). As a result of the Merger, the Company issued options to purchase a total of 2, 361, 722 shares of
the Company' s Common Stock to former holders of the DTIH stock options. The vesting schedules, remaining term, and
provisions (other than the adjusted number of underlying shares and exercise prices) of the Company Options issued, are
identical to the vesting schedules, remaining term, and other provisions of the DTIH stock options that were exchanged. Per a
post- closing amendment, Company Options currently held by former holders of DTIH stock options are no longer subject to
employment considerations. The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black- Scholes
eption-valuatterrmodel. Expected volatilities are based on comparable public company data. The Company uses future
estimated employee termination and forfeiture rates of the options within the valuation model. The expected term of options
granted is derived using the “ plain vanilla ” method due to the lack of history and volume of option activity at the Company.
The risk- free rate is based on the approximate U. S. Treasury yield rate in effect at the time of grant. The Company’ s
calculation of share price involves the use of different valuation techniques, including a combination of an income and market
approach. For any grants of stock options subsequent to the Company being publicly traded, the Company will use the quoted
market price as of the grant date as an 1nput into the Black Schole% model. Defeﬁﬁtﬂat-ren—e-ﬁt-he—faﬂ—va-}ue—ts—a-ma&er—ef

outqtandmg, as Well as actrvrty for the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31,2023 (-pﬂer—ye&r—a-meﬂﬂts—haye-been
Sig - Merger)-: Shares Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted




Average Remaining Contractual Life (in Years) Aggregate Intrinsic Value OUTSTANDING, December 31, 2022 2, 494, 097 §

4.043.939% 11, 687 Granted — — — — Exercised (132, 375) 5. 04 — — Forfeited — — — — OUTSTANDING, December
31,2023 2,361,722 4.02 3. 37 — UNVESTED-Granted 2 , 670 Deeember31+-, 2023-374 3. 04 — — Exercised (68, 470) 3.

72 — — Forfeited — — — — E%E-RGI—SABJ:E—OUTSTANDING December 3 1 %92—3—2024 2—36-1—7—2—2—4 —92— 963 626 3.
50 6 46 UNVESTED € e o

EXERCISABLE etse-priee-o S
stoelcas-of- December 31, 2623-2024 2 , 363, 626 4 ne-intrinstey t h t3e options
the-pertod-. 03 2. 96 During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Comp"my recognlzed $ 1. 7 million of stock based
compensation expense within selling, general, and administrative expense on the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income related to the accelerated vesting of an executive' s 534, 063 performance- based stock options. The
performance conditions were satisfied upon completion of the Merger and all 534, 063 performance- based stock options vested
on June 20, 2023. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized $ 2. 3 million of stock- based
compensation expense within other expense, net on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income as a
result of the issuance of shares in accordance with the TSA with HHLLC (see Note 3- Merger). During the year ended
December 31, 2622-2024 , there—- the was-ne-Company recognized $ 1. 4 million of stock- based compensation expense
related to stock options within selling, general, and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2024, total unrecognized compensation expense related to the stock
options totaled $ 3. 1 million. Restricted Stock UnitsIn May 2024, the Company issued an aggregate 143, 000 restricted
stock units (“ RSUs ) to five members of the Board (the “ Directors ). Of the awards, 74, 440 RSUs were deemed to be
related to services performed during the year ended December 31, 2023, and were to vest immediately, while the
remaining 68, 560 RSUs are subject to a vesting term of one year. The Directors are considered to be employees of the
Company under ASC 718. During year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized $ 0 . 7 million of stock based
compensation related to RSUs within selling, general, and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2024, unrecognized compensation expense related to the RSUs
totaled $ 0. 1 million NOTE 13 — OTHER EXPENSE, NETThe following table shows the components of other expenses, net
for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 ;and2022-(in thousands): Year Ended December 31, 2023-2024 Year Ended
December 31, 2622-2023 HHLLC stock- based compensation $ — $ (2, 339) $—Transaction fees ( 7, 036) ( 3, 640) —Other,
net (664) (428 3H436-) Interest income Other expense, net $ (7, 503) $ (6, 359 ¥$384-) NOTE 14 — RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONSManagement feesFor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-, management fees paid to
Hicks Holdings Operating LLC, a shareholder of the Company, were approximately $ 0. 8 million and § 1. | mithenand-$0-4
million, respectively. Management fees paid to the shareholder are included in selling, general and administrative expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Director feesFor the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-, director fees paid to our Board of Directors were approximately $ 0. 2-6 million and $ 0. +2 million,
respectively. Director fees are included in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. LeasesFor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the
Company paid rent expense to Cree Investments, LLC, a shareholder of the Company, of approximately $ 51 thousand and $ 51
thousand Iespectlvely, reldtmg to the lease of a bu11dmo Future minimum lease pdyments related to this lease are mcluded in

June 20, 2023, the ( ompany 1ssued shares of DTIC ( ommon Stod( in connectlon with the PIPE Fmancmg to payoff conv ertlble
promissory notes which were issued to an affiliate of the ROC Sponsor on December 6, 2022 and March 2, 2023, respectively.
The notes did not bear interest and were in the amounts of $ 2. 1 million and § 2. 1 million, respectively. Working Capital
LoanPrior to the Merger on June 20, 2023, ROC paid the remaining outstanding principal amount owed to an affiliate of the
ROC Sponsor in the amount of $ 0. 4 million for a loan to fund working capital deficiencies and finance transaction costs in
connection with the Merger. The loan did not bear interest . Sale of trucks During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Company sold two trucks to employees of the Company. The transactions were conducted at fair market value, with a
total sales price of $ 0. 1 million. As of December 31, 2024, the Company did not have any receivables recorded on the
consolidated balance sheet related to this transaction. Related Party Note Receivable On July 31, 2024 ("' Closing Date"),
the Company entered into the Sixth Amendment and Restated Promissory Note with Tronco Energy Corporation ("
Tronco'"), an entity owned by employees of the Company. Pursuant to the Sixth Amendment and Restated Promissory
Note, Tronco will make payments to the Company of $ 1. 3 million annually, commencing on the first anniversary of the
Closing Date through the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date. Per the agreement, if the 20- day average stock price of
DTI falls below $ 3. 20 per share, the principal that otherwise would have been due shall be deferred and apportioned
over the remaining payment dates under specified in the agreement. Any payments due and not received by the
Company before the fifth date following the anniversary date will bear interest from the date of nonpayment until paid
equal to 3 %. In accordance with ASC 805, the receivables fair value was measured at the present value of future cash
flows upon the Closing Date. The carrying value of the note as of December 31, 2024 was § 5. 2 million . NOTE 15 —
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESThe Company maintains operating leases for various facilities and vehicles. See
Note +3-9, Leases, for further information. LitigationFrom time to time, the Company may become involved in various legal
proceedings in the ordinary course of its business and may be subject to third- party infringement claims. In the normal course
of business, the Company may agree to indemnify third parties with whom it enters into contractual relationships, including
customers, lessors, and parties to other transactions with the Company, with respect to certain matters. The Company has agreed,



under certain conditions, to hold these third parties harmless against specmed losses, such as those arising from a breach of
representations or covenants, other third- party claims that the Company’ s products when used for their intended purposes
infringe the intellectual property rights of such other third parties, or other claims made against certain parties. It is not possible
to determine the maximum potential amount of liability under these indemnification obligations due to the Company’ s limited
history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances that are likely to be involved in each particular
claim. Management Fee The Company is required to pay a monthly management fee to a shareholder. The fee is based
upon a percentage of the Company’ s trailing twelve months, earnings before interest, taxes and accumulated
depreciation amount, as defined in the management agreement (refer to Note 14 — Related Parties Transactions). NOTE
16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANSThe Company has-a-sponsors various defined contribution savings plan , primarily in
the U. S., that eemptlies-allow employees to contribute a portion of their pre- tax and / or after- tax income in accordance

with speclfied guidelines Seetion4601+-g-of the-Internal Revente-Code-. Allemployees-are-anto-enroHed-at-Under specified
condltlons, the Company w1ll make contrlbutlons to the plans and / or match a percentage of 3%eeﬁtﬂbuﬁeﬂ—ttn-}ess—t-hey

emp}eyefeentfibﬁ&eﬁs—e’v‘eﬁiﬁfe&fs.—"Phe—contr1butlon plans isHm 6 ;
i i for the years ended December 31 2024 and 2()23 aﬂd%@%%—\x as a-ppfe*rmatel—y

$ 0. 5-7 million and $ 0. 4-5 mllllon respectively. NOTE 17 — EARNINGS PER SHAREBasic earnings per share is computed
using the weighted- average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed using
the weighted- average number of common shares outstanding for the period plus dilutive potential common shares, including
performance share awards, using the treasury stock method. Performance share awards are included based on the number of
shares that would be issued as if the end of the reporting period was the end of the performance period and the result was
dilutive. The following table sets forth the computation of the Company’ s basic and diluted net earnings per share for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-in thousands, except share and per share data): Year Ended December 31,
Numerator: Net income $ 3, 014 $§ 14, 748 $245-080-Lcss: Redeemable eenvertible-Convertible preferred-Preferred steek
Stock dividends — (314 335389-) Net income attributable to common shareholders — basic $ 3, 014 $ 14, 434 $39:-89+-Add:
Redeemable eenvertibte-Convertible preferred-Preferred steek-Stock dividends — +4+89-Net income attributable to common
shareholders — diluted $ 3, 014 $ 14, 748 $25-080-Denominator Weighted- average common shares used in computing
earnings per share — basic 31, 938, 847 21, 421, 610 H5-95+137Weighted- average effect of potentially dilutive securities:
Effect of potentially dilutive time- based stock options 311, 277 488, 997 +-666;,729-Effect of potentially dilutive performance-
based stock options 41, 033 45, 202 Effect of potentially dilutive restricted stock units 17, 022 — Effect of potentially
dilutive redeemable convertible preferred stock — 3, 175, 215 6;749;-64+-Weighted- average common shares outstanding —
diluted 32, 308, 179 25, , 024 49,677,507 Earnings per share — basic $ 0. 09 $ 0. 67 $3--66-Earnings per share — diluted $
0.09 $0. 59 $3-67FAs of Decembel 31,2024 and 2023, the C ompdny s potentldlly dllume secuntles consisted of eptions-te

eenveft-rb}e—pfefeﬁed-stee}e&nd-optlons to pulchase common stock The Company excluded the 1‘0110\& ing potentldl common
shares, presented based on amounts outstanding at each period end, from the computation of diluted net income per share for the

periods presented becduse includino them would hd\ e had an anti- dilutive effect: Year Ended December 31, Time- based
options outstanding 140, 140, 135 Total 140, 140, 135 82-0ur-NOTE 18 — SEGMENT INFORMATIONOperating
segments are 1dent1ﬁed as components of an enterprlse about which discrete financial information is available for
evaluation by the CODM in deciding resource allocation and assessing performance —based-stoek-options-were-exeladed
fretr. The Company’ s Chief Executive Officer serves as the diltted-earningspershare-eatenlationss CODM. The Company’
s CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for the years-ended-purposes of making
operational decisions, allocating resources, and evaluating financial performance. Consequently, the Company has
determined it has one operating and reportable segment as of December 31, 2622-2024 beeause-attneeessary-. The
Company’ s single segment derives revenues from customers by providing oilfield equipment and services to operators in
the oil and natural gas sectors. The CODM assesses performance eenditions-were-for the single segment and decides how
to allocate resources by using consolidated net income as reported on the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. The Company’ s CODM does not satisfied-byDeeember31+;2022-review segment assets at a
different level or category than those disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet . ©ur-The CODM uses consolidated net
income predominantly in the annual budget and forecastlng process The CODM con51ders budget- to- actual variances
on a monthly basis to forecast future performance —based-ste A d d 8 hare-, adjust the
budget, and make decisions about the allocation of operating and capital resources to the segment The table below
provides information about segment revenue, significant expenses, other segment items, and segment net income for the
year ended December 31, 2022-2024 were-as-foHows- Year Ended December 31, Revenue $ 154 Performanee—based-options
ottstanding—>534-, 446 $ 152 663Fotal—>534- 663-034 Less: Cost of sales 38, 491 35, 519 Operating, general, and
administrative expenses 76, 801 66, 655 Other segment items (1) 8, 969 8, 611 Depreciation and amortization expense 23,
832 20, 352 Interest expense 3, 369 1, 103 Income tax expense (30) 5, 046 Consolidated net income (loss) $ 3,014 $ 14, 748
(1) Other segment items included in segment net income include monitoring fees, miscellaneous expense (income), stock
expense, and transaction expenses. NOTE 4819 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Change in Reportable SegmentsBeginning in
January 2025, coinciding with the closing of the Company’ s acquisition of Titan Tools Services Limited, the Company
has realigned its operations to support its strategic initiatives to expand its global operations and reach new markets,
particularly in the Eastern Hemisphere. As a result, the Company realigned its reportable segments to correspond with




changes to its operating model, management structure, and organizational responsibilities. Effective January 2, 2025, the
Company will bifurcate its results into two segments: Eastern Hemisphere and Western Hemisphere. As of December
31, 2024, this realignment has not been reflected within the Company’ s financial statements. Beginning with the first
quarter in 2025, Form 10- Q will reflect the new reportable segments and corresponding information for prior periods
will be retrospectively revised to reflect this change in reportable segments. Acquisition of €asing-Feehnologies-Group
Himited-Titan Tools Services Ltd. On Mareh+8-January 2 , 2624-2025 , the Company announced #ts-entry-inte-the closing of
a share purchase agreement (the “ €FG-Titan Purchase Agreement ”, the “ Agreement ) to acquire one hundred percent (100
%) of the shares of Gasmg—"Peehﬂe-}egies—Gfeﬂp—Tltan Tools SerV1ces lelted a Scottish limited compdny ( €FG-Titan ).
Titan is a downhole tool rental i3 v ompany
that specializes in renting, servicing, and manufacturmg advanced drlllmg equ1pment for the 011 gas, and geothermal
industries. Consideration for the Titan acquisition primarily consists of (i) £ 4. 9 million in cash, as adjusted for cash
acquired and other items pursuant to the Agreement, and (ii) 0. 9 million shares of the Company’ s common stock . The
initial accounting for this business combination is in process , which includes conducting a valuation analysis to value the assets
and liabilities assumed as a result of the transaction. As such, the impact on the consolidated financial statements cannot be
estimated at this time. Restricted Issaanee-of-Stock Optiens-Unit Grant On February +4-28 , 2624-2025 , the Company issued
restricted stock epﬁeﬁs—umts (“ 2025 RSUs ”) to membms of'the C ompany S mdnagement team A total —rne-l-ud-mg—éﬁ—l—,

units were granted >

Options>)-. Each of the %9%4—2025 RSUs Stoek-Options-vest in substdntldlly equal mstallments on each of the first three-four (
3-4 ) anniversaries of the grant date. The 2624-2025 RSUs were issued with StoelOptions-are-exereisable-at-a price-grant date
fair value of $ 3. 82-23 per share | Credit Agreement On March 15,...... statements cannot be estimated at this time . Item 9.
Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure . None . Item 9A. Controls and
Procedures. Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’ s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal
financial officers, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures As required by
Rule 13a- 15 under the Exchange Act, management has evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures in effect as of December 31, 2623-2024 , the
end of the period covered by thls Report, using the Internal Control lnteudted Framework (“ ICIF ”) by the Commlttee of

evaluation, our Chlet Executlve OﬁlceI and Chief Flmncml OﬁlceI concluded that our dlsclosure controls and procedules were

not effective at a reasonable assurance level as of December 3 1, 2023-2024 ;-or-as-of the-date-of the-filing-of thisRepert-. Our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of Decembel 31, 2023;-eras-of the-date-of filing-of this Repert-beeause

2024because all findings in connection with our preparation and the audit of our consolidated financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2023, have not been fully remediated despite ongoing projects and
improvements made in the current guarter-year . As a result, we were not able to rely upon the disclosure controls and
procedures that were in place as of December 3 1, 2623-2024 ;-or-as-ofthe-date-ofthis-fiingand we continue to have a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. This material weakness is described in more detail below.
Remediation of Previously Reported Materlal Weaknesses Our management prevmusly determmed that materlal
weaknesses in Prior-to v b v d W
yrhteh-to-address-our mternal contml over tmdncml repomné ex1sted related to the des1gn and mamtenance of internal
controls commensurate with our financial reporting requirements . [n connection with our preparation and the audit of our
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, we identified the following deficiencies in
the design or operation of our internal controls to be a material weakness: ¢ Failure to promote effective internal control over
financial reporting throughout the Company’ s management structure; ¢ Failure to develop effective risk assessment controls to
identify financial reporting risks and reacting to changes in the operating environment that could have a material effect on
financial reporting; * Inadequate documentation and monitoring of information technology (“ IT ) general controls and
cyber- security processes within the Company’ s IT environment, including access controls and segregation of duties
between key IT functions; and ¢ [neffective monitoring activities to assess the operation of internal control over financial
reporting; During 2023 and 2024, management made significant progress on remediation initiatives in response to the
previously 1dent1fied materlal weakness. Speclﬁc remedlal actlons included: - Hiring addltlonal personnel in our ﬁnance
department fradeq attofane-mon 5
proeesses-within—- with experience commensurate w1th our ﬁnanclal accountmg t-he—Gefnpany—s—I—T—enﬁfefm%eﬂt—me}udmg
aeeess-eontrols-and reporting requirements; ¢ nettons—implementatto

Implementing of-Controls-—We-are-inthe-a pohcy requlrmg SOX tralmng, and performmg a full- day SOX training, for all




process of-and control owners; * implementing-Implementing a risk assessment process and-meastres-designed-to improve
identify key accounts and systems and their related risks; and ¢ Performing a segregation of duties assessment over the
IT systems to cover both IT and business process related conflicts by highlighting mitigating controls for high and
medium risk areas.. As a result, we have concluded that our internal-eontrot-overfinanetalreporting remediation efforts
have been successful and that the first three previously identified material weaknesses were remediated as of December
31, 2024. Management is continuing it' s effort to remediate the fourth eentrol-defietenetes-thatted-to-the-material weakness.
Ongoing Remediation Efforts As noted above, management believes that the following material is not yet remediated;
We have undertaken-made progress towards remedlatlon of the remalnmg materlal weakness w1th the 1‘0110\& ing initiatives
steps : * Developing a plan Frain

-lﬂ&ewledg&aﬂd-expeﬂeﬂeehto monltor streﬁgtheﬂ—ﬁﬂanetal—repeiﬁng—‘—lqls-ystefnﬁmd seeﬂﬂ?y-—rm-p-}emeﬂﬁﬁg—seftware—and

an provi ittonal-expertt ens he-effeet ontrol environment 3 ® Developmg and 1mplement1ng—
Fhe-engagement-with-the-external-speetatistineluded-a perlodlc eemprehenswe—remw—e-f—etu&eﬂst-mg testing plan to assess
the design of implemented controls identifieation-covering all material business processes and systems; * Executing the
testing plan as designed; and ¢ Reporting results of testing to management and the Board of Directors. Through the work

performed in 2024 management has identified the below areas for 1mpr0vement -and-the-development-of recommendations
ot ameworlc—Segrega A s-to fully remediate strengthen—segregation

ept-hﬁ'rzaﬁeﬂ-—ideﬁt-rfymgﬁmd IPE procedures should be bullt 1nto implementing it process-optimization
enhanee-the-overalteffieteney-and-effeetiveness-of-internal controls and tested; « Provide greater precision of evidence
related to the performance of both the business process and IT controls;  Continue to implement, refine and assess
controls over gaps identified from previous years and during our remediation efforts; and * Monitor the execution of I'T
and business process controls throughout the year . The process of maintaining designing-andimplementing-cffective
internal controls is a continuous effort that requires us to anticipate and react to changes in our business and the economic and
regulatory environments and to expend significant resources to maintain a system of internal controls that is adequate to satisfy
our reporting obligations as a public company. The elements of our remediation plan can only be accomplished over time, and
we can offer no assurance that these initiatives will ultimately have the intended effects. Changes in Internal Control over
Financial Reporting During 2024, we made three acquisitions that impacted the control environment. On March 18, 2024,
we completed the acquisition of Deep Casing Tools (“ DCT ). On August 1, 2024, we completed the acquisition of
Superior Drilling Products. As part of the acquisition, the Superior was renamed to Diamond Products Drilling (“ DPD
). On October 3, 2024, we completed the acquisition of European Drilling Projects (“ EDP ). We are permitted to omit
an assessment of an acquired business' internal control over financial reporting from our assessment of internal control
over financial reporting for a period not to exceed one year from the date of the acquisition. Accordingly, we have
excluded the internal control over financial reporting of DPD, DCT, and EDP from management' s assessment of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. The total assets of DCT, DPD, EDP represent
approximately 10 %, 23 % and 7 %, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2024. The total revenues of DCT, DPD, EDP represent approximately S %, 2 % and less
than 1 %, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December
31, 2024. There were no other changes in our 1nternal control env1ronment durlng the most 1ecent1y completed fiscal
quarter ended December 31 , 2024, th e g as defined in
Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchan;:e Act) that has-have mdterldlly dﬁeeted or is-are 1easonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information. Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding
Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections PART III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. The
information required by this item (and only such information) is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement. Item 11.
Executive Compensation. Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters. Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. Item 14. Principal Accounting
Fees and Services. PART IV Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. (1) Financial Statement The consolidated
financial statements of Drilling Tools International Corporation and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm are included in Part II, Item 8. Of this Annual Report. Reference is made to the accompanying Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements. (2) Financial Statement Schedules All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are
not applicable or the required information presented in the financial statements or the notes thereto. (3) Index to Exhibits The
exhibits required to be filed or furnished pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S- K are set forth below. Exhibit
IndexExhibitNumber Description2. 1 T Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 13, 2023, by and among ROC
Energy Acquisition Corp., ROC Meléel Sub, Inc. and Drilling Tools International Holdings, Inc. (mcorpomted by reference to
Exhibit 2. 1 to ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.’ s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2023). 2. 2 First Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among
ROC Energy Acquisition Corp., ROC Merger Sub, Inc. and Drilling Tools International Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by




reference to Exhibit 2. 1 to ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.” s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2023). 3. 1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
Drilling Tools International Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 3. 2
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Drilling Tools International Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 to Drilling
Tools International Corporation’ s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 27, 2023). 4. 1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Drilling Tools International Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No.
001-41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 4. 2 * Description of the Registrant’ s
Securities 10. 1 Form of Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 13 to ROC Energy Acquisition
Corp.” s Registration Statement on Form S- 4 (File No. 333- 269763), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 21, 2023). 10. 2 Form of Amendment to the Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to
Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 10. 3 Form of Exchange Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to
Drilling Tools International Corporation” s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 10. 4 ¥ Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2023, by and among Drilling Tools International, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current Report
on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 10. 5 Form of
Lock- up Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 12 to ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.” s Registration Statement on
Form S- 4 (File No. 333- 269763), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023). 10. 6 Form of
Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 7 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current
Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 10. 7
Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2023, between ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.,
ROC Energy Holdings, LLC, EarlyBird Capital, Inc., HHEP Directional, L. P., RobJon Holdings, L. P. and Michael W.
Domino, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 18 to ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.” s Registration Statement on Form S
4 (File No. 333- 269763), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023). 10. 8 # Form of 2023
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to ROC Energy Acquisition Corp.” s Registration Statement
on Form S- 4 (File No. 333- 269763), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023). 10. 9
Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2023, between Drilling Tools International Holdings, Inc. and
Drilling Tools International Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 13 to Drilling Tools International
Corporation’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 273348), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on July 20, 2023). 24-10. 10 Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agreement, dated
as of March 185, 2024, by and among Drilling Tools International, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current
Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2024). 19. 1
* Drilling Tools International Corporation Insider Trading Policy21 . | Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 21. 1 to Drilling Tools International Corporation’ s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No. 001- 41103),
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2023). 23. 1 * Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm. 24. 1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto). 31. 1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13a- 14a and Rule 15d- 14 (a) of the Securities and Exchange Act, as amended. 31. 2 * Certification of Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14a and Rule 15d- 14 (a) of the Securities and Exchange Act, as amended. 32. 1 *
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 32. 2 * Certification of
Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Schedule 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 97. 1 * DTI Clawback Policy-
8398475101. INS * Inline XBRL Instance Document- the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File as its
XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document101. SCH * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With
Embedded Linkbase Documents104 * Cover page formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101 * Filed herewith. f
Certain exhibits and schedules to this exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Regulation S- K Item 601 (b) (2). We agree
to furnish supplementally a copy of all omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon its request. # Indicates management
contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.. Item 16. Form 10- K Summary. SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of
Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Company Name Date: March 28-14 , 2624-2025 By: / s / R.
Wayne Prejean R. Wayne Prejean President, CEO, and DirectorPOWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE
PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints, jointly and severally, R. Wayne
Prejean, as his attorney- in- fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post- effective amendments), and any and all registration
statements filed pursuant to Rule 462 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in connection with or related to the offering
contemplated by this registration statement and its amendments, if any, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our
signatures as they may be signed by our said attorney to any and all amendments to said registration statement. Pursuant to the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Name Title Date / s / R. Wayne Prejean President, CEO,
and Director March 28-14 , 2624R-2025R . Wayne Prejean (Principal Executive Officer) /s / David R. Johnson Chief Financial



Officer March 28-14 , 2624Bavid-2025David R. Johnson (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s / Thomas O. Hicks
Chairman of the Board March 28-14 , 2024Fhemas-2025Thomas O. Hicks /s / Eric C. Neuman Director March 28-14 ,
2024Erte-2025Eric C. Neuman /s / John D. Furst Director March 28-14 , 262436hi-2025John D. Furst /s / C. Richard
Vermillion Director March 2814 , 2624€-2025C . Richard Vermillion /s / Curtis L. Crofford Director March 28-14 ,
2024Curtis-2025Curtis L. Crofford /s / Thomas M. Patterson Director March 28-14 , 2624Themas-2025Thomas M. Patterson
Exhibit 4. 2 DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT” S SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 The following description sets forth certain material terms and provisions of
the securities of Drilling Tools International Corporation (the “ Company ) that are registered under Section 12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. This description also summarizes relevant provisions of Delaware law. The following
summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the applicable
provisions of Delaware law and our second amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the “ Certificate of Incorporation
) and our amended and restated bylaws (the “ Bylaws ), copies of which are incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the
Annual Report on Form 10- K of which this Exhibit 4. 2 is a part. We encourage you to read our certificate of incorporation, our
bylaws, and the applicable provisions of Delaware law for additional information. Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock
Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of 500, 000, 000 shares of the Common Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value per
share (the “ Common Stock ”) and 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, $ 0. 0001 par value. The outstanding shares of
Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non- assessable. As of March 28, 2024, there were 29, 768,
568 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding. Voting Power
Except as otherwise required by law, our Certificate of Incorporation or as otherwise provided in any certificate of designation
for any series of preferred stock, stockholders possess all voting power for the election of directors and all other matters
requiring stockholder action. Except as otherwise provided in our Certificate of Incorporation or expressly required by law,
stockholders are entitled to one (1) vote per share on matters to be voted on by stockholders. Except as otherwise required by
law, stockholders, as such, are not entitled to vote on any amendment that relates solely to the rights, powers, preferences (or the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof) or other terms of one or more outstanding series of preferred stock if the
holders of such affected series are entitled, either separately or together with the holders of one or more other such series, to vote
thereon pursuant our Certificate of Incorporation or pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “ DGCL ”).
Dividends Subject to applicable law and the rights and preferences of any holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock,
stockholders, as such, are entitled to the payment of dividends on the Common Stock when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors (the “ Board ) in accordance with applicable law. Liquidation, Dissolution and Winding Up Subject to the rights and
preferences of any holders of any shares of any outstanding series of preferred stock, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, the funds and assets of the Company that may be legally
distributed to stockholders will be distributed among the holders of the then outstanding Common Stock pro rata in accordance
with the number of shares of Common Stock held by each holder. Preemptive or Other Rights Subject to the preferential rights
of any other class or series of stock, all shares of Common Stock have equal dividend, distribution, liquidation and other rights,
and have no preference or appraisal rights, except for any appraisal rights provided by the DGCL. Furthermore, holders of
Common Stock have no preemptive rights and there are no conversion, sinking fund or redemption rights, or rights to subscribe
for any of our securities. The voting, dividend, liquidation, and other rights and powers of the Common Stock are subject to and
qualified by the rights, powers and preferences of any series of preferred stock as may be designated by the Board and
outstanding from time to time. Election of Directors The Board is divided into three classes, each of which generally serves for a
term of three years with only one class of directors being elected in each year. There is no cumulative voting with respect to the
election of directors, with the result that the holders of more than 50 % of the shares voted for the election of directors can elect
all of the directors. Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time in
one or more series. The Board is authorized to fix the designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications,
limitations or restrictions thereof, of any series of preferred stock, including, without limitation, authority to fix by resolution the
dividend rights, dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption (including sinking fund
provisions), redemption price or prices, and liquidation preferences of any such series and the number of shares constituting any
such series and the designation thereof, or any of the foregoing. The Board can, without Stockholder approval, issue preferred
stock with voting and other rights that could adversely affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of Common Stock
and could have anti- takeover effects. The ability of the Board to issue preferred stock without Stockholder approval could have
the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of us or the removal of existing management. We have no
preferred stock outstanding at the date hereof. Transfer Agent The transfer agent for the Common Stock is Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Company (“ Continental ). We have agreed to indemnify Continental in its role as transfer agent, its agents
and each of its stockholders, directors, officers and employees against all liabilities, including judgments, costs and reasonable
counsel fees that may arise out of acts performed or omitted for its activities in that capacity, except for any liability due to any
gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith of the indemnified person or entity. Certain Anti- Takeover Provisions of
Delaware Law, our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws Section 203 of the DGCL We have not opted out of Section 203 of
the DGCL in our Certificate of Incorporation. This statute prevents us, under certain circumstances, from engaging in a *
business combination ” with: « a stockholder who owns 10 % or more of our outstanding voting stock (otherwise known as an *
interested stockholder ); ¢ an affiliate of an interested stockholder; or * an associate of an interested stockholder, for three years
following the date that the stockholder became an interest stockholder. A “ business combination ” includes a merger or sale of
more than 10 % of our assets. However, the above provisions of Section 203 do not apply if:  the Board approves the
transaction that made the stockholder an “ interested stockholder, ™ prior to the date of the transaction; ¢ after the completion of
the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, that stockholder owned at least 85 % of our



voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, other than statutorily excluded shares of Common Stock; or ¢
on or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is approved by the Board and authorized at a meeting
of our stockholders, and not by written consent, by an affirmative vote of at least two- thirds of the outstanding voting stock not
owned by the interested stockholder. Under certain circumstances, declining to opt out of Section 203 of the DGCL will make it
more difficult for a person who would be an * interested stockholder ” to effect various business combinations with us for a
three- year period. This may encourage companies interested in acquiring us to negotiate in advance with the Board because the
stockholder approval requirement would be avoided if the Board approves the acquisition which results in the stockholder
becoming an interested stockholder. This may also have the effect of preventing changes in the Board and may make it more
difficult to accomplish transactions which stockholders may otherwise deem to be in their best interests. Classified Board of
Directors Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Board is divided into three classes of directors, with the classes to be
as nearly equal in number as possible, and with each director serving a three- year term. As a result, approximately one- third of
the Board is elected each year. The classification of directors has the effect of making it more difficult for stockholders to
change the composition of the Board. Authorized but Unissued Shares The authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock
and preferred stock are available for future issuance without stockholder approval, subject to any limitations imposed by the
listing standards of the Nasdaq. These additional shares may be used for a variety of corporate finance transactions, acquisitions
and employee benefit plans. The existence of our authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of Common Stock and preferred
stock could make it more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a proxy contest, tender offer,
merger or otherwise. Written Consent by Stockholders Under our Certificate of Incorporation, subject to the rights of holders of
preferred stock, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders must be effected at an annual or special
meeting of stockholders and may not be taken by written consent in lieu of a meeting. Special Meeting of Stockholders Under
our Certificate of Incorporation, subject to the terms of any series of preferred stock, special meetings of stockholders may be
called only by the Board, the chairperson of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, or the President, and may not be called by
any other person or persons. Only such business shall be considered at a special meeting of stockholders as shall have been
stated in the notice for such meeting. Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals and Director Nominations Under
our Certificate of Incorporation, advance notice of Stockholder nominations for the election of directors and of business
proposed to be brought by stockholders before any meeting of the stockholders must be given in the manner provided in our
Bylaws. Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws Our Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the Board or by the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 2 / 3 % of the total voting power of all of the shares of our capital stock entitled to
vote in the election of directors, voting as one class. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 2 / 3 % of the total voting
power of all the then outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class, is required
to amend certain provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation. Board Vacancies Subject to the special rights of the holders of
one or more outstanding series of preferred stock to elect directors, except as otherwise provided by law, any vacancies on the
Board and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors are filled exclusively by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, even though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director
(other than any directors elected by the separate vote of one or more outstanding series of preferred stock), and are not filled by
the stockholders. Any director appointed in accordance with the preceding sentence holds office until the expiration of the term
to which such director shall have been appointed or until his or her earlier death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, or
removal. Exclusive Forum Unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of
Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if the Court of Chancery does not have jurisdiction, another state court in Delaware or the
federal district court for the District of Delaware) is, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the sole and exclusive forum for (a)
any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Company, (b) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary
duty owed by any director, stockholder, officer or other employee of the Company to the Company or stockholders, (c) any
action arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws (as either may be amended
from time to time) or (d) any action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine, except for, as to each of (a)
through (d) above, any claim as to which such court determines that there is an indispensable party not subject to the jurisdiction
of such court (and the indispensable party does not consent to the personal jurisdiction of such court within 10 days following
such determination), which is vested in the exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other than such court or for which such
court does not have subject matter jurisdiction. Unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum,
the federal district courts of the United States of America shall be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any
complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act against any person in connection with any offering of
Company securities, including, without limitation and for the avoidance of doubt, any auditor, underwriter, expert, control
person, or other defendant. There is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce the exclusive forum provision of our
Certificate of Incorporation. Holders of Common Stock cannot waive compliance with federal securities laws and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder. The exclusive forum provision of our Certificate of Incorporation does not apply to actions
arising under the Exchange Act. Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Directors and Officers Our Certificate of
Incorporation provides that our directors and officers will be indemnified and advanced expenses by us to the fullest extent
authorized or permitted by the DGCL as it now exists or may in the future be amended. No director or officer of the Company
has any personal liability to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director
or officer, as applicable, except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation thereof is not permitted under the
DGCL as the same exists or hereafter may be amended. Our Bylaws also permit us to purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any officer, director, employee or agent of us for any liability arising out of his or her status as such, regardless of
whether the DGCL would permit indemnification. These provisions may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit
against our directors for breach of their fiduciary duty. These provisions also may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of



derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our
stockholders. Furthermore, a stockholder’ s investment may be adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement
and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions. We believe that these provisions,
the insurance and the indemnity agreements are necessary to attract and retain talented and experienced directors and officers.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers and
controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. Rule 144 Pursuant to
Rule 144, a person who has beneficially owned restricted shares of Common Stock for at least six months would be entitled to
sell such shares provided that (a) such person is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates at the time of, or at any time
during the three months preceding, a sale and (b) we are subject to the Exchange Act periodic reporting requirements for at least
three months before the sale and have filed all required reports under Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act during the 12
months (or such shorter period as we were required to file reports) preceding the sale. Persons who have beneficially owned
restricted shares of Common Stock for at least six months but who are our affiliates at the time of, or at any time during the
three months preceding, a sale, would be subject to additional restrictions, by which such person would be entitled to sell within
any three- month period a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of: ¢ 1 % of the total number of shares of such
securities then- outstanding; or * the average weekly reported trading volume of such securities during the four calendar weeks
preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale. Sales by our affiliates under Rule 144 are also limited by
manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the availability of current public information about us. Restrictions on
Use of Rule 144 by Shell Companies or Former Shell Companies Rule 144 is not available for the resale of securities initially
issued by shell companies (other than business combination related shell companies) or issuers that have been at any time
previously a shell company. However, Rule 144 also includes an important exception to this prohibition if the following
conditions are met: * the issuer of the securities that was formerly a shell company has ceased to be a shell company; © the issuer
of the securities is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act;  the issuer of the securities
has filed all Exchange Act reports and materials required to be filed, as applicable, during the preceding 12 months (or such
shorter period that the issuer was required to file such reports and materials), other than Current Reports on Form 8- K; and « at
least one year has elapsed from the time that the issuer filed current Form 10 type information with the SEC reflecting its status
as an entity that is not a shell company. As a result, it is likely that pursuant to Rule 144, our insiders will be able to sell their
shares of Common Stock freely without registration one year after the Closing Date assuming they are not an affiliate of ours at
that time. Listing of Securities The Common Stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol “ DTI ”. Exhibit 19. 1
Insider Trading Policy Drilling Tools International Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ Company ),
expect Covered Persons to fully comply with all state and federal securities laws. Federal law prohibits the purchase or
sale of Securities by a person aware of Material Non- Public Information, as well as the disclosure of Material Non-
Public Information by a person to others who then trade in Securities based on that information. Punishment for insider
trading violations is severe, and could result in significant fines and imprisonment. This Insider Trading Policy (the
Policy ”) provides guidelines with respect to transactions in the Securities of the Company and the handling of
confidential information about the Company and the companies with which the Company does business. DEFINITIONS
Business Partners and Competitors — All current and potential partners, vendors, suppliers and competitors of the
Company. Affiliate — With respect to a (i) specified person, an affiliate of another person is a person who directly, or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the person
specified; and (ii) company, such company is deemed to be an affiliate of another company if one of them is the
subsidiary of the other or if both are subsidiaries of the same company or if each of them is controlled by the same
person or company. Affiliate status is a facts and circumstances determination, but officers, directors and significant
shareholders of an entity and partners of a partnership are generally deemed to be affiliates of the entity or partnership,
as applicable. Covered Persons — (i) All directors, officers, employees, consultants, contractors and agents of the
Company, from time to time; (ii) any family member (including a spouse or domestic partner) or other person living in
the household or a dependent child of any of the foregoing individuals; (iii) Affiliates of any of the above- mentioned
individuals; (iv) partnerships, trusts, estates, corporations and other similar entities over which any of the above-
mentioned individuals exercise control or direction (including by acting as trustee or in a similar capacity) collectively.
Insider Trading — Trading or facilitating trading of the Company’ s Securities while in possession of Material Non-
Public Information in breach of a fiduciary duty or other relationship of trust and confidence owed to the Company, its
shareholders or the source of the information. Material Information — Information that a reasonable investor would
consider important in making a decision to buy, hold or sell Securities, including any information that could reasonably
be expected to affect the price of a Security, whether it is positive or negative. [ 1 | Material Non- Public Information —
Information that is both Material Information and Non- Public Information. Non- Public Information — Information
that has not been disclosed to the public and widely disseminated. [ 2 | SEC — The Securities and Exchange Commission.
Security — a fungible, negotiable financial instrument issued by a company that offers evidence of (i) an ownership
position in the company (equity); (ii) a creditor relationship with the company (debt); or (iii) a hybrid combination of
equity and debt. The Company’ s Securities include its common stock, as well as any debt securities that it may issue. [ 1
] There is no bright- line standard for assessing materiality. Rather, materiality is based on an assessment of all of the
facts and circumstances, and is often evaluated by enforcement authorities with the benefit of hindsight. The
information may relate to the Company itself or involve the Company’ s suppliers, partners, or acquisition targets.
Information deemed material could relate to, among other things, proposed acquisitions, dispositions or mergers,
regulatory actions, financial results, financing or capital plans, changes in dividend rates, significant write- offs or



significant increases in reserves, significant litigation or government investigations, cybersecurity incidents and major
changes in management. [ 2 | Information generally is considered widely disseminated if it has been disclosed through a
national newswire service, published in a widely available newspaper, magazine or news website, or publicly disclosed in
a document filed with the SEC that is available on the SEC’ s website. By contrast, information would likely not be
considered widely disseminated if it is available only to the Company’ s employees, or if it is only available to a select
group of analysts, brokers and institutional investors. Once information is widely disseminated, it is still necessary to
afford the investing public sufficient time to absorb the information. As a rule of thumb, information is generally not
considered public until one to three days after it has been publicly disclosed. GENERAL POLICY GUIDELINES It is
the policy of the Company that if a Covered Person is aware of Material Non- Public Information relating to the
Company, the Covered Person may not: 1. trade [ 3 |, directly or indirectly, in any Securities of the Company; 2.
recommend the purchase or sale of any Securities of the Company; 3. disclose Material Non- Public Information to
persons within the Company whose jobs do not require them to have that information; or 4. disclose Material Non-
Public information outside of the Company to any other persons, unless any such disclosure is made in accordance with
the Company’ s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of information regarding the
Company. In addition, it is the policy of the Company that if a Covered Person learns of Material Non- Public
Information about a Business Partner or Competitor, the Covered Person may not trade in that company’ s Securities
until the information becomes public or is no longer material. Any exceptions to this policy may be granted only by the
Chief Financial Officer and must be provided before any activity contrary to this policy takes place. NO
SPECULATING, SHORT- SELLING, PUTS AND CALLS Trading in Securities of the Company by Covered Persons
with access to Material Information may give rise to actual or perceived contraventions of applicable securities laws and
/ or inappropriate conflicts of interest. To assist Covered Persons in undertaking trades of Securities that do not result in
such contraventions or conflicts, Covered Persons are prohibited at any time from, directly or indirectly, undertaking
any of the following activities: 1. speculating in Securities of the Company, which may include day trading; 2. buying the
Company’ s Securities on margin; 3. short selling a Security of the Company or any other arrangement that results in a
gain only if the value of the Company’ s Securities declines in the future; 4. selling a “ call option ” giving the holder an
option to purchase Securities of the Company; S. buying a “ put option ” giving the holder an option to sell Securities of
the Company; [ 3 ] A “ trade ” means any purchase, sale, pledge, gift, election made in a Company plan (e. g., 401 (k)
plan or employee stock purchase plan) or entry into, modification or termination of a 10b5- 1 trading plan. 6. purchasing
financial instruments, including prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, or units of exchange funds,
that are designed to hedge or offset a decrease in the market value of Securities of the Company held, directly or
indirectly, by such Covered Persons, including equity Securities granted as compensation; and 7. any other transaction
similar to the foregoing. TRADING PRE- CLEARANCE To assist each of the Covered Persons specified below to avoid
undertaking any trade in Securities of the Company that may contravene or be perceived to contravene applicable
securities laws, the following individuals are required to notify the Chief Financial Officer of any proposed trade of
Securities of the Company in order to confirm that there is no Material Information that has not been generally
disclosed: 1. a director or executive officer of the Company subject to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
with respect to Company Securities; 2. an individual who is notified by the Chief Financial Officer that the individual’ s
trades in Securities of the Company will be subject to pre- clearance in accordance with this Policy; 3. a family member
(including a spouse or domestic partner) or other person living in the household or a dependent child of any of the
foregoing individuals; and 4. such other persons as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company may designate as being
subject to the trading pre- clearance restrictions. Such notification shall be made by personal conversation with, or e-
mail or written notice (“ Trade Notice ) to the Chief Financial Officer no later than 9: 00 a. m. (Central Time) on the
business day before the date of the proposed trade (or such shorter period as the Chief Financial Officer may permit in
his / her sole discretion) and no earlier than five (5) business days before the day of the proposed trades. The Chief
Financial Officer may consult with outside counsel regarding Trade Notices. Prior to 5: 00 p. m. (Central Time) on the
business day preceding the date of the proposed trade, the Chief Financial Officer shall endeavor to notify any individual
who has given a Trade Notice in accordance with this Policy whether the Chief Financial Officer reasonably anticipates
that any proposed trade will contravene applicable securities laws and / or this Policy, and if so, that the proposed trade
may not be undertaken. If the Chief Financial Officer does not notify the individual and provide pre- clearance of the
trade, the applicable Covered Person may not proceed with such trade. The Chief Financial Officer will respond to all
Trade Notices. WINDOW PERIODS The “ Blackout Group ” consists of Company directors, officers and employees
(designated by the Chief Financial Officer) whose duties may involve the receipt of Material Non- Public Information
during preparation of the Company’ s quarterly earnings information. Blackout Group members are prohibited from
purchasing or selling any Security of the Company during the period beginning 15 calendar days before the end of any
fiscal quarter of the Company and ending upon completion of the second full business day after the public release of
earnings data for such fiscal quarter or during any other trading suspension period declared by the Company, except
for: 1. purchases of the Company’ s Securities from the Company or sales of the Company’ s Securities to the Company;
2. exercises of stock options or other equity awards or the surrender of shares to the Company in payment of the exercise
price or in satisfaction of any tax withholding obligations in a manner permitted by the applicable equity award
agreement, or vesting of equity- based awards, in each case that do not involve a market sale of the Company’ s
Securities (the “ cashless exercise ” of a Company stock option through a broker does involve a market sale of the
Company’ s Securities, and therefore would not qualify under this exception); and 3. purchases or sales of the Company’
s Securities made pursuant to any binding contract, specific instruction or written plan entered into while the purchaser



or seller, as applicable, was unaware of any Material Non- Public Information and which contract, instruction or plan (i)
meets all requirements of the affirmative defense provided by Rule 10b5- 1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, (ii) was pre- cleared in advance pursuant to this Policy and (iii) has not been amended or modified in any
respect after such initial pre- clearance without such amendment or modification being pre- cleared in advance pursuant
to this Policy. From time to time, the Company, through the Board of Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or Chief
Executive Officer, may impose special window periods and require that Blackout Group members and other designated
individuals suspend trading in the Company’ s Securities because of developments that have not yet been disclosed to the
public. Subject to the exceptions noted above, all those affected shall not trade in the Company’ s Securities while the
suspension is in effect, and shall not disclose to others that the Company has suspended trading. INSIDE
INFORMATION REGARDING OTHER COMPANIES This Policy and the guidelines described in this Policy also
apply to Material Non- Public Information relating to other companies, including the Company’ s Business Partners and
Competitors, when that information is obtained in the course of employment with, or the performance of services on
behalf of, the Company. Covered Persons shall treat Material Non- Public Information about the Company’ s Business
Partners and Competitors with the same care required with respect to information related directly to the Company.
ADMINISTRATION Implementation of this Policy is the responsibility of all management and supervisory personnel.
Under federal law, corporate employers can be liable for insider trading violations of their employees. The SEC can
bring action against persons who “ control ” violators, which may include the Company, employees with supervisory
authority and officers and directors of the Company. Copies of the Policy are available to all Covered Persons upon
request. The Policy is also available on the Company Intranet. WHISTLEBLOWER Any individual who has
information that another person has engaged in Insider Trading or any other activity in contravention of this Insider
Trading Policy should report that information to the Chief Financial Officer. There will be no retaliation against any
person who makes a complaint, encourages another person to make a complaint, or who participates in the investigation
of a complaint. However, any Covered Person complaint or participation that is not in good faith may subject the
Covered Person to disciplinary or other responsive action by the Company. COMPLIANCE AND QUESTIONS Any
Covered Person who fails to comply with this Policy is subject to appropriate disciplinary action, which may include civil
and criminal penalties and termination of employment or other service, with cause. Questions related to this Policy
should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer. This Policy continues to apply to transactions in the Company’ s
Securities even after termination of service to the Company. If an individual is in possession of Material Non- Public
Information about the Company when his or her service terminates, that individual may not trade in the Company’ s
Securities until the information becomes public or is no longer Material Information. Covered Persons are responsible
for ensuring that members of their households also comply with this Policy. Adopted by the Board of Directors June 20,
2023. Exhibit 23. 1 We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement-Statements on Form S
3 No. 333- 266522 and Form S 8 No. 333- 274242-214383 of Drilling Tools International Corporation of our report dated
March 28-14 , 2624-2025 | relating to the consolidated financial statements -which appear-appears in this Form 10- K. /s/
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L. L. P. Mareh28;2624-Exhibit 31. | CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a- 14 (a)
AND 15d- 14 (a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, R. Wayne Prejean, certify that: (1) [ have reviewed this Form 10- K of
Drilling Tools International Corporation; (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; (3) Based on my knowledge, the
financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; (4) The
registrant' s other certifying officer (s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting,
or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant' s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the
registrant' s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant' s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant' s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting; and (5) The registrant' s other certifying officer (s) and I have
disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant' s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant' s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): (a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant' s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant' s
internal control over financial reporting. Date: March 28-14 , 2624-2025 By: / s / R. Wayne Prejean R. Wayne Prejean Chief
Executive OfficerExhibit 31. 2 I, David R. Johnson, certify that: Date: March 28-14 , 2624-202S By: / s / David R. Johnson



David R. Johnson Chief Financial OfficerExhibit 32. 1 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the Annual Report of Drilling Tools
International Corporation (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the period ending December 31, 2623-2024 , as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13
(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company. Date: March 28-14 , 2624-2025 By: / s/ R.
Wayne Prejean R. Wayne Prejean Chief Executive OfficerExhibit 32. 2 Exhibit 97. 1 Drilling Tools International Corp.
POLICY FOR THE RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATION A. OVERVIEW In accordance with
the applicable rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC, including Nasdaq Rule 5608 (collectively, the “ Nasdaq Rules ™), Section
10D and Rule 10D- 1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”) (“ Rule 10D- 1 ™), the Board
of Directors (the “ Board ™) of Drilling Tools International Corp. (the “ Company ") has adopted this Policy (the “ Policy ) to
provide for the recovery of erroneously awarded Incentive- based Compensation from Executive Officers. All capitalized terms
used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in Section H, below. B. RECOVERY OF
ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATION (1) In the event of an Accounting Restatement, the Company will
reasonably promptly recover the Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received in accordance with Nasdaq Rules and Rule
10D- 1 as follows: (i) After an Accounting Restatement, the Compensation Committee (if composed entirely of independent
directors, or in the absence of such a committee, a majority of independent directors serving on the Board) (the “ Committee )
shall determine the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received by each Executive Officer and shall promptly
notify each Executive Officer with a written notice containing the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation and a
demand for repayment or return of such compensation, as applicable, including any repayment schedule associated therewith.
For the avoidance of doubt, this Policy shall apply to all Executive Officers who received Erroneously Awarded Compensation
during the applicable Clawback Period, regardless of whether any particular Executive Officer was or was not responsible for or
involved in the preparation of the Company’ s financial statements. For Incentive- based Compensation based on (or derived
from) the Company’ s stock price or total shareholder return, where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not
subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in the applicable Accounting Restatement: (a) The amount
to be repaid or returned shall be determined by the Committee based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting
Restatement on the Company’ s stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Incentive- based Compensation was
Received; and (b) The Company shall maintain documentation of the determination of such reasonable estimate and provide the
relevant documentation as required to Nasdagq. (i) The Committee shall have discretion to determine the appropriate means of
recovering Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on the particular facts and circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
except as set forth in Section B (2) below, in no event may the Company accept an amount that is less than the amount of
Erroneously Awarded Compensation in satisfaction of an Executive Officer’ s obligations hereunder. (iii) To the extent that the
Executive Officer has already reimbursed the Company for any Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received under any
duplicative recovery obligations established by the Company or applicable law, it shall be appropriate for any such reimbursed
amount to be credited to the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is subject to recovery under this Policy. (iv) To
the extent that an Executive Officer fails to repay all Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company when due, the
Company shall take all actions reasonable and appropriate to recover such Erroneously Awarded Compensation from the
applicable Executive Officer. The applicable Executive Officer shall be required to reimburse the Company for any and all
expenses reasonably incurred (including legal fees) by the Company in recovering such Erroneously Awarded Compensation in
accordance with the immediately preceding sentence. (2) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company shall
not be required to take the actions contemplated by Section B (1) above if the Committee (which, as specified above, is
composed entirely of independent directors or in the absence of such a committee, a majority of the independent directors
serving on the Board) determines that recovery would be impracticable and either of the following two conditions is met: (i) The
Committee has determined that the direct expenses paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the Policy would exceed the
amount to be recovered. Before making this determination, the Company must make a reasonable attempt to recover the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation, document such attempt (s) and provide such documentation to Nasdagq; or (ii) Recovery
would likely cause an otherwise tax- qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the
Company, to fail to meet the requirements of Section 401 (a) (13) or Section 411 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, and regulations thereunder. C. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS The Company shall file all disclosures with respect
to this Policy required by applicable U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ”) filings and rules. D. PROHIBITION
OF INDEMNIFICATION The Company shall not be permitted to insure or indemnify any Executive Officer against (i) the loss
of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is repaid, returned or recovered pursuant to the terms of this Policy, or (ii) any
claims relating to the Company’ s enforcement of its rights under this Policy. Further, the Company shall not enter into any
agreement that exempts any Incentive- based Compensation that is granted, paid or awarded to an Executive Officer from the
application of this Policy or that waives the Company’ s right to recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation, and this
Policy shall supersede any such agreement (whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date of this Policy). E.
ADMINISTRATION AND INTERPRETATION This Policy shall be administered by the Committee, and any determinations
made by the Committee shall be final and binding on all affected individuals. No recovery hereunder of any Erroneously
Awarded Compensation shall constitute an event giving rise to a right for any Executive Officer to resign for *“ good reason ” or
“ constructive termination ” (or similar term) under any plan, agreement, arrangement or contract with the Company or any
affiliate thereof. In addition, the Board may require that any employment agreement, equity or equity- based award agreement or
other similar agreement entered into on or after the effective date of this Policy shall, as a condition to the grant of any



compensation or benefit thereunder, require the applicable Executive Officer to acknowledge and agree to abide by the terms of
this Policy. The Committee is authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary,
appropriate, or advisable for the administration of this Policy and for the Company’ s compliance with Nasdaq Rules, Section
10D, Rule 10D- 1 and any other applicable law, regulation, rule or interpretation of the SEC or Nasdaq promulgated or issued in
connection therewith. F. AMENDMENT; TERMINATION; SEVERABILITY The Committee may amend this Policy from
time to time in its discretion and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary. Notwithstanding anything in this Section F to the
contrary, no amendment or termination of this Policy shall be effective if such amendment or termination would (after taking
into account any actions taken by the Company contemporaneously with such amendment or termination) cause the Company to
violate any federal securities laws, SEC rules or Nasdaq Rules. If any provision of this Policy is determined to be unenforceable
or invalid under any applicable law, SEC rules or Nasdaq Rules, such provision shall be applied to the maximum extent
permitted thereby and shall automatically be deemed amended in a manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary
to confirm to any such limitations. G. OTHER RECOVERY RIGHTS This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all
Executive Officers and, to the extent required by applicable law or guidance from the SEC or Nasdaq, their beneficiaries, heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives. The Committee intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest
extent required by applicable law. Any employment agreement, equity award agreement, compensatory plan or any other
agreement or arrangement with an Executive Officer shall be deemed to include, as a condition to the grant of any benefit
thereunder, an agreement by the Executive Officer to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recovery under this Policy
is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recovery that may be available to the Company under
applicable law, regulation or rule or pursuant to the terms of any policy of the Company or any provision in any employment
agreement, equity award agreement, compensatory plan, agreement or other arrangement. H. DEFINITIONS For purposes of
this Policy, the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth below. (1) “ Accounting Restatement ” means an
accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the
securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is
material to the previously issued financial statements (a “ Big R ” restatement), or that would result in a material misstatement if
the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period (a “ little r ” restatement). (2) * Clawback
Eligible Incentive Compensation ” means all Incentive- based Compensation Received by an Executive Officer (i) after
beginning service as an Executive Officer, (ii) who served as an Executive Officer at any time during the applicable
performance period relating to any Incentive- based Compensation (whether or not such Executive Officer is serving at the time
the Erroneously Awarded Compensation is required to be repaid to the Company), (iii) while the Company has a class of
securities listed on a national securities exchange or a national securities association, and (iv) during the applicable Clawback
Period (as defined below). (3) *“ Clawback Period ” means, with respect to any Accounting Restatement, the three completed
fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the Restatement Date (as defined below), and if the Company changes its
fiscal year, any transition period of less than nine months within or immediately following those three completed fiscal years.
(4) ““ Erroneously Awarded Compensation ” means, with respect to each Executive Officer in connection with an Accounting
Restatement, the amount of Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation that exceeds the amount of Incentive- based
Compensation that otherwise would have been Received had it been determined based on the restated amounts, computed
without regard to any taxes paid. (5) “ Executive Officer ” means the Company’ s current or former president, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if there is no such accounting officer, the controller), any vice- president of the
Company in charge of a principal business unit, division, or function (such as sales, administration, or finance), any other officer
who performs a policy- making function, or any other person who performs similar policy- making functions for the Company.
Executive officers of the Company’ s parent (s) or subsidiaries are deemed executive officers of the Company if they perform
such policy making functions for the Company. Executive Officers shall include at a minimum executive officers identified
pursuant to 17 CFR 229. 401 (b). (6) “ Financial Reporting Measures ” means measures that are determined and presented in
accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’ s financial statements, and all other measures that are
derived wholly or in part from such measures. Stock price and total shareholder return (and any measures that are derived wholly
or in part from stock price or total shareholder return) shall, for purposes of this Policy, be considered Financial Reporting
Measures. For the avoidance of doubt, a Financial Reporting Measure need not be presented in the Company’ s financial
statements or included in a filing with the SEC. (7) “ Incentive- based Compensation ” means any compensation, including, but
not limited to, cash, stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, phantom stock and other equity or equity- based
awards, that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure. Equity
and equity- based awards that vest exclusively upon completion of a specified employment period, without any performance
condition, and bonus awards that are discretionary or based on subjective goals or goals unrelated to Financial Reporting
Measures, do not constitute Incentive- based Compensation. (8) “ Nasdaq ” means The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC. (9)
Received ” means, with respect to any Incentive- based Compensation, actual or deemed receipt, and Incentive- based
Compensation shall be deemed received in the Company” s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure
specified in the Incentive- based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of the Incentive- based
Compensation to the Executive Officer occurs after the end of that period. (10) “ Restatement Date ”” means the earlier to occur
of (i) the date the Board, a committee of the Board or the officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action
is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare an Accounting
Restatement, or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare an Accounting
Restatement. Effective October 2, 2023. Exhibit A ATTESTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF POLICY FOR THE
RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATION By signing this Attestation and Acknowledgement Form
below, the undersigned (the *“ Executive Officer ”’) acknowledges and confirms that the Executive Officer has received and



reviewed a copy of the Policy for the Recovery of Erroneously Award Compensation (the * Policy ™) of Drilling Tools
International Corp. (the “ Company ). In consideration of the Executive Officer’ s eligibility to receive future Incentive- based
Compensation (as defined in the Policy) and to participate in Incentive- based Compensation plans, as well as other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by the Executive Officer signing this Attestation
and Acknowledgement Form below, the Executive Officer acknowledges and agrees that: « the Executive Officer is and will
continue to be fully bound by, and subject to, the Policy; * in the event of any inconsistency between the Policy and the terms of
any employment or separation agreement to which the Executive Officer is a party, or the terms of any compensation plan,
program or arrangement under which any Incentive- based Compensation is granted, awarded, earned or paid, the terms of the
Policy shall govern; * the Policy will apply both during and after the Executive Officer’ s employment with the Company; © the
Policy will apply to past and future Incentive- based Compensation as provided in the Policy; and the Executive Officer is
required to comply with the terms and conditions of the Policy, including, without limitation, the requirement to return any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation (as defined in the Policy) to the Company to the extent required by, and in a manner

consistent with, the Policy Signature: Printed Name: HEZFVBE=9G6Z M-+ X—6AOBBBCHNF<6-HAZ+<
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